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CHRONOLOGICAL INDEX

FILED DOCUMENT VOL.
01/04/2019 Complaint For Divorce 1 1 - 6
01/04/2019 Request For Issuance Of Joint Preliminary Injunction 1
01/09/2019 Summons 1 8 - 9
01/09/2019 Proof Of Service 1
01/11/2019 Joint Preliminary Injunction 1 11 - 12
01/29/2019 Default 1
01/31/2019 Affidavit Of Resident Witness 1 14 - 15
02/01/2019 Certificate Of Completion COPE Class 1 16 - 18
02/01/2019 General Financial Disclosure Form 1 19 - 25
02/04/2019 Answer And Counterclaim 1 26 - 34
02/05/2019 Ex Parte Motion To Vacate Or Continue Hearing 1 35 - 39
02/07/2019 Amended Answer And Counterclaim 1 40 - 47
02/07/2019 Defendant's Motion To Set Aside Default; For Exclusive Possession Of 

The Marital Residence And Order Plaintiff To Assist In Making 
Mortgage Payments; For Medical Legal Custody Of The Minor 
Children, For An Order Referring The Parties To Mediation Pursuant 
To EDCR 5.70, For An Order Awarding Plaintiff Child Support; For 
An Order Awarding Plaintiff Alimony; And For Attorney Fees And 
Costs

1 48 - 61

02/07/2019 Amended Motion To Set Aside Default; For Exclusive Possession Of 
The Marital Residence And Ordering Plaintiff To Assist In Making 
Mortgage Payments; For Medical Legal Custody Of The Minor 
Children, For An Order Referring The Parties To Mediation Pursuant 
To EDCR 5.70, For An Order Awarding Defendant Child Support For 
An Order Awarding Defendant Alimony; And For Attorney Fees And 
Costs

1 62 - 75

02/07/2019 Order Setting Case Management Conference And Directing Compliance 
With NRCP 16.2

1 76 - 85

02/07/2019 Order For Family Mediation Center Services 1
02/14/2019 Notice Of Appearance Of Attorney 1 87 - 88
02/14/2019 Petition To Seal Records Pursuant To NRS 125.110(2) 1 89 - 90
02/21/2019 Notice Of 16.2 Early Case Conference 1 91 - 92
02/25/2019 Reply To Counterclaim For Divorce 1 93 - 96
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CHRONOLOGICAL INDEX

FILED DOCUMENT VOL. PAGES
02/26/2019 Plaintiff's Opposition To Amended Motion To Set Aside Default; For 

Exclusive Possession Of The Marital Residence And Ordering Plaintiff 
To Assist In Making Mortgage Payments; For Medical Legal Custody 
Of The Minor Children; For An Order Referring The Parties To 
Mediation Pursuant To EDCR 5.70, For An Order Awarding Plaintiff 
Child Support; For An Order Awarding Defendant Alimony; And For 
Attorney's Fees And Costs Primary Physical Custody, Child Support, 
And Attorney's Fees And Costs And Countermotion For Joint Legal 
Custody; Primary Physical Custody To Plaintiff And Supervised 
Visitation To Defendant; To Establish Child Support; To Establish 
Payment Of Marital Expenses; For An Order Protecting The Parties 
Community Property; Defendant To Obtain Employment And To 
Cooperate In A Vocational Assessment

1 97 - 125

02/26/2019 Appendix Of Exhibits To Plaintiff's Opposition To Amended Motion 
To Set Aside Default; For Exclusive Possession Of The Marital 
Residence And Ordering Plaintiff To Assist In Making Mortgage 
Payments; For Medical Legal Custody Of The Minor Children; For An 
Order Referring The Parties To Mediation Pursuant To EDCR 5.70, 
For An Order Awarding Plaintiff Child Support; For An Order 
Awarding Defendant Alimony; And For Attorney's Fees And Costs 
Primary Physical Custody, Child Support, And Attorney's Fees And 
Costs And Countermotion For Joint Legal Custody; Primary Physical 
Custody To Plaintiff And Supervised Visitation To Defendant; To 
Establish Child Support; To Establish Payment Of Marital Expenses; 
For An Order Protecting The Parties Community Property; Defendant 
To Obtain Employment And To Cooperate In A Vocational Assessment

1 126 - 173

02/26/2019 General Financial Disclosure Form 1 174 - 184
03/12/2019 Order To Seal Records Pursuant To NRS 125.110(2) 1 185 - 186
03/13/2019 Notice Of Entry Of Order To Seal Records 1 187 - 191
03/18/2019 Reply To Opposition And Countermotion 1 192 - 195



CHRONOLOGICAL INDEX

FILED DOCUMENT VOL. PAGES
03/18/2019 Appendix Of Supplemental Exhibits To Plaintiff's Opposition To 

Amended Motion To Set Aside Default; For Exclusive Possession Of 
The Marital Residence And Ordering Plaintiff To Assist In Making 
Mortgage Payments; For Medical Legal Custody Of The Minor 
Children; For An Order Referring The Parties To Mediation Pursuant 
To EDCR 5.70, For An Order Awarding Plaintiff Child Support; For 
An Order Awarding Defendant Alimony; And For Attorney's Fees And 
Costs Primary Physical Custody, Child Support, And Attorney's Fees 
And Costs And Countermotion For Joint Legal Custody; Primary 
Physical Custody To Plaintiff And Supervised Visitation To Defendant; 
To Establish Child Support; To Establish Payment Of Marital 
Expenses; For An Order Protecting The Parties Community Property; 
Defendant To Obtain Employment And To Cooperate In A Vocational 
Assessment

1 196 - 215

03/19/2019 Case And Non-Jury Trial Management Order 1 216 - 219
03/19/2019 Behavior Order 1 220 - 224
03/20/2019 Notice Of Association Of Counsel 1 225 - 226
04/22/2019 Stipulation And Order Modifying Timeshare 1 227 - 229
04/23/2019 Notice Of Entry Of Stipulation And Order Modifying Timeshare 1 230 - 235
05/03/2019 Order After Hearing Of March 19, 2019 1 236 - 250
05/03/2019 Notice Of Entry Of Order After Hearing Of March 19, 2019 2 251 - 268
05/14/2019 Emergency Motion For A Change Of Custody; For Attorney's Fees And 

Costs And Related Relief
2 269 - 299

05/14/2019 Appendix Of Exhibits In Support Of Plaintiff's Emergency Motion For 
A Change Of Custody; For Attorney's Fees And Costs And Related 
Relief

2 300 - 391

05/15/2019 Plaintiff's Initial Expert Witness List 2 392 - 400
05/24/2019 Appendix Of Supplemental Exhibits In Support Of Plaintiff's 

Emergency Motion For A Change Of Custody; For Attorney's Fees And 
Costs And Related Relief

2 401 - 404

05/28/2019 Opposition To Plaintiff's Emergency Motion For A Change Of 
Custody/Spousal Support/Child Support, For Attorney's Fees And Costs 
And Related Relief. Counter Motion For Change Of Custody For 
Primary Physical And Sole Legal Custody, Psychological Evaluation Of 
The Plaintiff

2 405 - 419

06/05/2019 Ex Parte Motion For An Order Shortening Time 2 420 - 429
06/11/2019 Reply In Support Of Emergency Motion For A Change Of Custody; 

For Attorney's Fees And Costs And Related Relief And Opposition To 
Countermotion For Change Of Custody For Primary Physical And Sole 
Legal Custody, Psychological Evaluation Of The Plaintiff

2 430 - 453



CHRONOLOGICAL INDEX

FILED DOCUMENT VOL. PAGES
06/11/2019 Appendix Of Exhibits In Support Of Plaintiff's Reply In Support Of 

Emergency Motion For A Change Of Custody; For Attorney's Fees And 
Costs And Related Relief And Opposition To Countermotion For 
Change Of Custody For Primary Physical And Sole Legal Custody, 
Psychological Evaluation Of The Plaintiff

2 454 - 471

06/13/2019 Motion For An Order To Show Cause 2 472 - 484
06/29/2019 Opposition To Motion For An Order To Show Cause And 

Countermotion
2 485 - 500

07/15/2019 General Fiancial Disclosure Form 3 501 - 511
07/23/2019 Minute Order 3 512 - 514
07/25/2019 Motion For Division Of The Proceeds From The Sale Of The Marital 

Home, And For Attorney's Fees
3 515 - 520

07/26/2019 Notice Of Entry Of July 23, 2019 Minute Order 3 521 - 524
08/21/2019 Order After Hearing Of June 17, 2019 3 525 - 531
08/22/2019 Notice Of Entry Of Order After Hearing Of June 17, 2019 3 532 - 541
08/23/2019 Motion To Withdraw And Adjudicate Attorney's Lien 3 542 - 561
08/23/2019 Notice Of Attorney's Lien 3 562 - 564
08/28/2019 Minute Order - No Hearing Held 3 565 - 567
08/28/2019 Substitution Of Attorneys 3 568 - 570
08/28/2019 Defendant's Motion To Continue Trial, And For Issuance Of New Trial 

Management Order, Or In The Alternative To Extend Discovery 
Deadlines (First Request)

3 571 - 583

08/28/2019 Exhibits To Defendant's Motion To Continue Trial, And For Issuance 
Of New Trial Management Order, Or In The Alternative To Extend 
Discovery Deadlines (First Request)

3 584 - 598

08/28/2019 Notice Of Entry Of August 28, 2019 Minute Order 3 599 - 603
08/29/2019 Ex Parte Motion For Order Shortening Time To Hear Defendant's 

Motion To Continue Trial, And For Issuance Of New Trial 
Management Order, Or In The Alternative To Extend Discovery 
Deadlines (First Request0

3 604 - 608

08/30/2019 Opposition To Defendant's Motion To Continue Trial, And For 
Issuance Of New Trial Management Order, Or In The Alternative To 
Extend Discovery Deadlines (First Request); And Countermotion To 
Strike The Substitution Of Attorneys

3 609 - 624

09/04/2019 Order Shortening Time 3 625 - 626
09/06/2019 Case And Non-Jury Trial Management Order 3 627 - 630
09/09/2019 Defendant, Chalese Solinger's List Of Witnesses For Trial 3 631 - 636
09/09/2019 Notice Of Intent To File Opposition To Prior Counsel's Motion To 

Adjudicate Attorney's Lien
3 637 - 639

09/13/2019 Opposition To Louis C. Schneider's Motion To Adjudicate Attorney's 
Lien

3 640 - 650

09/16/2019 Order Setting Case Management Conference And Directing Compliance 
With NRCP 16.2

3 651 - 652

09/17/2019 Notice Of Seminar Completion 3 653 - 654



CHRONOLOGICAL INDEX

FILED DOCUMENT VOL. PAGES
09/20/2019 Defendant's Notice Of UNLV Seminar Completion EDCR 5.07 3 655 - 656
09/20/2019 Affidavit Of Resident Witness 3 657 - 658
09/24/2019 General Financial Disclosure Form 3 659 - 669
09/30/2019 Re-Notice Of Hearing For Defendant's Motion To Continue Trial, And 

For Issuance Of New Trial Management Order, Or In The Alternative 
To Extend Discovery Deadlines

3 670 - 671

09/30/2019 Defendant's Notice Of Seminar Completion - EDCR 5.302 3 672 - 674
09/30/2019 Ex Parte Motion For Order Shortening Time To Hear Defendant's 

Motion To Continue Trial, And For Issuance Of New Trial 
Management Order, Or In The Alternative To Extend Discovery 
Deadlines

3 675 - 678

10/01/2019 Order Shortening Time 3 679 - 680
10/02/2019 Opposition To Defendant's Renoticed Motion To Continue Trial, And 

For Issuance Of New Trial Management Order, Or In The Alternative 
To Extend Discovery Deadlines

3 681 - 692

10/02/2019 Defendant's Reply To Opposition To Defendant's Renoticed Motion To 
Continue Trial, And For Issuance Of New Trial Management Order, Or 
In The Alternative To Extend Discovery Deadlines

3 693 - 702

10/03/2019 Order After Hearing Of August 1, 2019 3 703 - 707
10/04/2019 Notice Of Entry Of Order After Hearing Of August 1, 2019 3 708 - 715
10/09/2019 Defendant's Motion For Temporary Spousal Support And Preliminary 

Attorney's Fees
3 716 - 731

10/09/2019 Exhibits To Defendant's Motion For Temporary Spousal Support And 
Preliminary Attorney's Fees

4 732 - 803

10/09/2019 Financial Disclosure Form 4 804 - 814
10/23/2019 Opposition To Defendant's Motion For Temporary Spousal Support 

And Preliminary Attorney's Fees And Countermotion For Attorney's 
Fees And Costs

4 815 - 842

10/24/2019 Appendix Of Exhibits In Support Of Plaintiff's Opposition To 
Defendant's Motion For Temporary Spousal Support And Preliminary 
Attorney's Fees And Countermotion For Attorney's Fees And Costs

4 843 - 850

10/24/2019 Plaintiff's Motion To Compel Discovery Responses And For Attorney's 
Fees

4 851 - 868

11/04/2019 Reply To Opposition To Defendant's Motion For Temporary Spousal 
Support And Preliminary Attorney's Fees And Opposition To 
Countermotion For Attorney's Fees And Costs

4 869 - 888

11/04/2019 Exhibits To Reply To Opposition To Defendant's Motion For 
Temporary Spousal Support And Preliminary Attorney's Fees And 
Opposition To Countermotion For Attorney's Fees And Costs

4 889 - 930

11/07/2019 Defendant's Opposition To Plaintiff's Motion To Compel Discovery 
Responses And For Attorney's Fees

4 931 - 939

11/08/2019 Errata To Opposition To Plaintiff's Motion To Compel Discovery 
Responses And For Attorney's Fees

4 940 - 943

11/12/2019 Response In Support Of Opposition 4 944 - 971



CHRONOLOGICAL INDEX

FILED DOCUMENT VOL. PAGES
11/12/2019 Appendix Of Exhibits In Support Of Plaintiff's Response In Support Of 

Opposition
5 972 - 1038

11/14/2019 Ex Parte Motion For An Order To Release Electronics To Adam's 
Agent Or, In The Alternative, For An Order Barring The Release Of 
Electronics Until Further Court Order

5 1039 - 1053

11/15/2019 Defendant's Motion For A Custody Evaluation, Attorney's Fees, And 
Related Relief

5 1054 - 1072

11/15/2019 Exhibits To Defendant's Motion For A Custody Evaluation, Attorney's 
Fees, And Related Relief

5 1073 - 1109

11/15/2019 Errata To Exhibits To Defendant's Motion For A Custody Evaluation, 
Attorney's Fees, And Related Relief

5 1110 - 1112

11/18/2019 Defendant's Response To Plaintiff's Response In Support Of Opposition 
To Defendant's Motion For Temporary Spousal Support And 
Preliminary Fees And Costs

5 1113 - 1128

11/18/2019 Exhibits To Defendant's Response To Plaintiff's Response In Support 
Of Opposition To Defendant's Motion For Temporary Spousal Support 
And Preliminary Fees And Costs

5 1129 - 1163

11/19/2019 Motion For Protective Order 5 1164 - 1176
11/20/2019 Application For Order Shortening Time 5 1177 - 1179
11/21/2019 Order Shortening Time 5 1180 - 1181
11/21/2019 Supplemental Appendix Of Exhibits In Support Of Plaintiff's Response 

In Support Of Opposition To Defendant's Motion For Temporary 
Spousal Support And Preliminary Fees And Costs

5 1182 - 1192

11/21/2019 Notice Of Entry Of Order Shortening Time 5 1193 - 1197
11/21/2019 Ex Parte Application For An Order Shortening Time On Defendant's 

Motion For A Custody Evaluation, Attorney's Fees, And Related Relief
5 1198 - 1200

11/22/2019 Defendant's Joinder To Joshua Lloyd's Motion For Protective Order 
And Countermotion For Fees From Plaintiff To Defendant

5 1201 - 1212

11/22/2019 Exhibits To Defendant's Joinder To Joshua Lloyd's Motion For 
Protective Order And Countermotion For Fees From Plaintiff To 
Defendant

5 1213 - 1222

11/22/2019 Order After Hearing Of September 6, 2019 6 1223 - 1225
11/22/2019 Notice Of Entry Of Order After Hearing Of September 6, 2019 6 1226 - 1231
11/26/2019 Objection To Discovery Commissioners Report And Recommendations 

Filed November 12, 2019
6 1232 - 1244

11/26/2019 Appendix Of Exhibits In Support Of Objection To Discovery 
Commissioners Report And Recommendations Filed November 12, 
2019

6 1245 - 1280

11/26/2019 Opposition To Mr. Lloyd's Motion For Protective Order And 
Countermotion For Attorney's Fees And Costs

6 1281 - 1296

11/26/2019 Appendix Of Exhibits In Support Of Plaintiff's Opposition To Mr. 
Lloyd's Motion For Protective Order And Countermotion For 
Attorney's Fees And Costs

6 1297 - 1332



CHRONOLOGICAL INDEX

FILED DOCUMENT VOL. PAGES
11/29/2019 Plaintiff's Reply In Support Of Motion To Compel Discovery 

Responses And For Attorney's Fees
6 1333 - 1345

12/02/2019 Reply To Plaintiff's Opposition To Mr. Lloyd's Motion For Protective 
Order And Countermotion For Attorney's Fees And Costs

6 1346 - 1373

12/04/2019 Opposition To Defendant's Motion For A Custody Evaluation, 
Attorney's Fees And Related Relief And Countermotion For Attorney's 
Fees And Costs

6 1374 - 1405

12/06/2019 Reply To Opposition To Defendant's Motion For A Custody 
Evaluation, Attorney's Fees, And Related Relief And Opposition To 
Countermotion For Attorney's Fees And Costs

6 1406 - 1415

12/06/2019 Exhibits To Reply To Opposition To Defendant's Motion For A 
Custody Evaluation, Attorney's Fees, And Related Relief And 
Opposition To Countermotion For Attorney's Fees And Costs

7 1416 - 1495

12/06/2019 Second Supplemental Appendix Of Exhibits In Support Of Plaintiff's 
Response In Support Of Opposition To Defendant's Motion For 
Temporary Spousal Support And Preliminary Fees And Costs

7 1496 - 1536

12/06/2019 Supplemental Declaration To Reply To Opposition To Defendant's 
Motion For A Custody Evaluation, Attorney's Fees, And Related Relief 
And Opposition To Countermotion For Attorney's Fees And Costs

7 1537 - 1539

12/09/2019 Referral Order For Outsourced Evaluation Services 7
12/09/2019 Case And Non Jury Trial Management Order 7 1541 - 1544
12/12/2019 Order After Hearing Of October 3, 2019 7 1545 - 1548
12/12/2019 Notice Of Entry Of Order After Hearing Of October 3, 2019 7 1549 - 1555
12/12/2019 Plaintiff's Notice Of UNLV Seminar Completion EDCR 5.07 7
12/27/2019 Motion For Reconsideration Of The Court's December 9, 2019 

Decision; For Proof Of Chalese's Auto Insurance For The Last Year; 
And Related Relief

7 1557 - 1575

12/30/2019 Discovery Commissioners Report And Recommendations From 
12/06/19 Hearing

7 1576 - 1580

12/31/2019 Plaintiff's Brunzell Affidavit For Attorney's Fees And Costs 7 1581 - 1629
01/02/2020 Defendant's Objection To Plaintiff's Brunzell Affidavit For Attorney's 

Fees And Costs
7 1630 - 1636

01/03/2020 Opposition To Plaintiff's Motion For Reconsideration Of The Court's 
December 9, 2019 Decision; For Proof Of Chalese's Auto Insurance For 
The Last Year; And Related Relief; And Countermotion To Restore 
Joint Physical Custody And For Attorney's Fees

7 1637 - 1660

01/06/2020 Receipt Of Check 7
01/06/2020 Receipt Of Check 7
01/22/2020 Order On Discovery Commissioner's Report And Recommendations 7 1663 - 1664
01/22/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Order 8 1665 - 1668
01/23/2020 Notice Of Withdrawal Of Attorney Of Record 8 1669 - 1671

1540

1556

1661
1662



CHRONOLOGICAL INDEX

FILED DOCUMENT VOL. PAGES
01/23/2020 Plaintiff's Reply In Support Of Plaintiff's Motion For Reconsideration 

Of The Court's December 9, 2019 Decision; For Proof Of Chalese's 
Auto Insurance For The Last Year; And Related Relief; And Opposition 
To Defendant's Countermotion To Restore Joint Physical Custody And 
For Attorney's Fees

8 1672 - 1704

01/23/2020 Appendix Of Exhibits In Support Of Plaintiff's Reply In Support Of 
Plaintiff's Motion For Reconsideration Of The Court's December 9, 
2019 Decision; For Proof Of Chalese's Auto Insurance For The Last 
Year; And Related Relief; And Opposition To Defendant's 
Countermotion To Restore Joint Physical Custody And For Attorney's 
Fees

8 1705 - 1739

01/23/2020 Discovery Cmmissioner's Report And Recommendations From 12/06/19 
Hearing

8 1740 - 1744

01/27/2020 Motion To Withdraw As Attorney Of Record For Defendant 8 1745 - 1753
02/04/2020 Ex Parte Motion For An Order Shortening Time 8 1754 - 1757
02/06/2020 No Contact Order 8 1758 - 1760
02/06/2020 Notice Of Entry Of No Contact Order 8 1761 - 1766
02/06/2020 Order From December 9, 2019 Hearing 8 1767 - 1774
02/06/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Order 8 1775 - 1784
02/12/2020 Request For Submission Of Motion To Withdraw As Counsel Of 

Record
8 1785 - 1786

02/12/2020 Notice Of Non-Opposition To Motion To Withdraw As Attorney Of 
Record For Defendant

8 1787 - 1788

02/13/2020 Minute Order 8 1789 - 1791
02/19/2020 Order On Discovery Commissioner's Report And Recommendations 8 1792 - 1799
02/20/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Order On Discovery Commissioner's Report And 

Recommendations
8 1800 - 1809

02/20/2020 Order To Withdraw As Counsel Of Record 8 1810 - 1811
02/20/2020 Substituttion Of Attorney 8 1812 - 1814
02/21/2020 Motion For An Order To Show Cause And To Hold Defendant In 

Contempt Of Court For Violation Of The March 19, 2019 Order, The 
June 17, 2019 Order, And The Behavior Order Filed March 19, 2019; 
For Attorney's Fees And Costs And Related Relief

8 1815 - 1832

02/24/2020 Supplemental Appendix Of Exhibits In Support Of Plaintiff's Motion 
For Reconsideration Of The Court's December 9, 2019 Decision; For 
Proof Of Chalese's Auto Insurance For The Last Year; And Related 
Relief

8 1833 - 1849

02/25/2020 Defendant's Objection To Plaintiff's Supplemental Appendix 8 1850 - 1852
02/26/2020 Request For Child Protection Service Appearance And Records 8
02/26/2020 Order Referring To Judical Settlement Program 8 1854 - 1855
02/28/2020 Receipt Of Check 8 1856

1853



CHRONOLOGICAL INDEX

FILED DOCUMENT VOL. PAGES
03/16/2020 Opposition To Plaintiff's Motion For An Order To Show Cause And To 

Hold Defendant In Contempt Of Court For Violation Of The March 19, 
2019 Order, The June 17, 2019 Order, And The Behavior Order Filed 
March 19, 2019; For Attorney's Fees And Costs And Related Relief 
And Counter Motion To Enforce Phone Contact With The Minor 
Children And For Attorney's Fees

8 1857 - 1878

03/16/2020 Exhibit Appendix To Plaintiff's Motion For An Order To Show Cause 
And To Hold Defendant In Contempt Of Court For Violation Of The 
March 19, 2019 Order, The June 17, 2019 Order, And The Behavior 
Order Filed March 19, 2019; For Attorney's Fees And Costs And 
Related Relief And Counter Motion To Enforce Phone Contact With 
The Minor Children And For Attorney's Fees

8 1879 - 1892

03/20/2020 Receipt Of Check 8
03/25/2020 Notice Of Seminar Completion EDCR 5.302 8 1894 - 1896
03/30/2020 Reply In Support Of Motion For An Order To Show Cause And To 

Hold Defendant In Contempt Of Court For Violation Of The March 19, 
2019 Order, The June 17, 2019 Order, And The Behavior Order Filed 
March 19, 2019; For Attorney's Fees And Costs And Related Relief 
And Partial Opposition To Countermotion To Enforce Phone Contact 
With The Minor Children And For Attorney's Fees

9 1897 - 1918

03/30/2020 Supplemental Appendix Of Exhibits In Support Of Plaintiff's Reply In 
Support Of Motion For An Order To Show Cause And To Hold 
Defendant In Contempt Of Court For Violation Of The March 19, 2019 
Order, The June 17, 2019 Order, And The Behavior Order Filed March 
19, 2019; For Attorney's Fees And Costs And Related Relief And 
Partial Opposition To Countermotion To Enforce Phone Contact With 
The Minor Children And For Attorney's Fees

9 1919 - 1959

03/31/2020 Motion For A Change Of Custody Based On Defendant's Endangerment 
Of The Minor Children; For Marie's Birth Certificate; For Attorney's 
Fees And Costs And Related Relief

9 1960 - 1983

03/31/2020 Ex Parte Motion For An Order Shortening Time 9 1984 - 1987
03/31/2020 Stipulation And Order To Provide CPS Records And Drug Test Results 

To The Child Custody Evaluator
9 1988 - 1990

04/01/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Stipulation And Order To Provide CPS Records 
And Drug Test Results To The Child Custody Evaluator

9 1991 - 1996

04/01/2020 Order Shortening Time 9 1997 - 1998
04/02/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Order Shortening Time 9 1999 - 2003
04/02/2020 Substitution Of Attorneys 9 2004 - 2006
04/02/2020 Opposition To Plaintiff's Motion For A Change Of Custody Based On 

Defendant's Endangerment Of The Minor Children; For Marie's Birth 
Certificate; For Attorney's Fees And Costs And Related Relief And 
Countermotion For An Order To Show Cause, Compensatory Visitation 
Time, And Attorney's Fees

9 2007 - 2028

1893



CHRONOLOGICAL INDEX

FILED DOCUMENT VOL. PAGES
04/03/2020 Reply In Support Of Motion For A Change Of Custody Based On 

Defendant's Endangerment Of The Minor Children; For Marie's Birth 
Certificate; For Attorney's Fees And Costs And Related Relief And 
Opposition To Countermotion For An Order To Show Cause, 
Compensatory Visitation Time, And Attorney's Fees

9 2029 - 2045

04/09/2020 Appendix Of Supplemental Exhibits To Plaintiff's Motion For A 
Change Of Custody Based On Defendant's Endangerment Of The Minor 
Children; For Marie's Birth Certificate And Related Relief

9 2046 - 2074

04/22/2020 Order From April 6, 2020 Hearing 9 2075 - 2078
04/22/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Order After Hearing Of April 6, 2020 9 2079 - 2085
04/26/2020 Plaintiff's Motion For An Order To Permit Plaintiff To Retain The Sick 

Minor Children Pursuant To Their Pediatrician's Directive, For 
Attorney's Fees And Costs And Related Relief

9 2086 - 2099

04/27/2020 Appendix Of Exhibits In Support Of Motion For An Order To Permit 
Plaintiff To Retain The Sick Minor Children Pursuant To Their 
Pediatrician's Directive; For Attorney's Fees And Costs Related Relief

9 2100 - 2129

04/28/2020 Opposition To Motion For An Order To Permit Plaintiff To Retain The 
Sick Minor Children Pursuant To Their Pediatrician's Directive; For 
Attorney's Fees And Costs And Related Relief And Countermotion For 
Make-Up Visitation Time; To Admonish Plaintiff To Abide By Joint 
Legal Custody Standards; For Attorney's Fees; And Related Relief

10 2130 - 2162

04/28/2020 Exhibits To Opposition To Motion For An Order To Permit Plaintiff 
To Retain The Sick Minor Children Pursuant To Their Pediatrician's 
Directive; For Attorney's Fees And Costs And Related Relief And 
Countermotion For Make-Up Visitation Time; To Admonish Plaintiff 
To Abide By Joint Legal Custody Standards; For Attorney's Fees; And 
Related Relief

10 2163 - 2203

05/13/2020 Order After Hearing February 26, 2020 10 2204 - 2211
05/14/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Order After Hearing Of February 26, 2020 10 2212 - 2222
05/19/2020 Reply In Support Of Motion For An Order To Permit Plaintiff To 

Retain The Sick Minor Children Pursuant To Their Pediatrician S 
Directives; For Attorney S Fees And Costs And Related Relief And 
Opposition To Countermotion For Make-Up Visitation Time; To 
Admonish Plaintiff To Abide By Joint Legal Custody Standards; For 
Attorney S Fees; And Related Relief

10 2223 - 2242

05/22/2020 Defendant's Motion For An Order To Show Cause As To Why Plaintiff 
Should Not Be Held In Contempt, For Orders Regarding Health 
Insurance And Spousal Support, For Attorney's Fees, And Related 
Relief

10 2243 - 2272

05/22/2020 Exhibits To Defendant's Motion For An Order To Show Cause As To 
Why Plaintiff Should Not Be Held In Contempt, For Order Regarding 
Health Insurance And Spousal Support, For Attorney's Fees, And 
Related Relief

10 2273 - 2307



CHRONOLOGICAL INDEX

FILED DOCUMENT VOL. PAGES
05/22/2020 General Financial Disclosure Form 10 2308 - 2317
05/27/2020 Order To Show Cause 10 2318 - 2320
05/27/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Order 10 2321 - 2325
06/03/2020 Ex Parte Application For An Order To Show Cause 10 2326 - 2362
06/07/2020 Schedule Of Arrearages 10 2363 - 2366
06/19/2020 Plaintiff's Motion To Address Upcoming Trial Date And Findings In 

Regard To Chalese's Refusal To Timely Facilitate The Completion Of 
The Child Custody Evaluation

10 2367 - 2380

06/22/2020 Ex Parte Motion For An Order Shortening Time 11 2381 - 2384
06/22/2020 Order Shortening Time 11 2385 - 2386
06/22/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Order Shortening Time 11 2387 - 2391
06/26/2020 Opposition To Motion To Address Upcoming Trial Date And Findings 

In Regard To Chalese's Refusal To Timely Facilitate The Completion 
Of The Child Custody Evaluation And Countermotion For Plaintiff To 
File An Updated Fdf, For Attorney's Fees, And Related Relief

11 2392 - 2417

06/26/2020 Exhibits To Opposition To Motion To Address Upcoming Trial Date 
And Findings In Regard To Chalese's Refusal To Timely Facilitate The 
Completion Of The Child Custody Evaluation And Countermotion For 
Plaintiff To File An Updated Fdf, For Attorney's Fees, And Related 
Relief

11 2418 - 2434

06/29/2020 Stipulation And Order Regarding Orders To Show Cause 11 2435 - 2437
06/29/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Stipulation And Order Regarding The Orders To 

Show Cause
11 2438 - 2443

06/30/2020 General Financial Disclosure Form 11 2444 - 2454
07/06/2020 Order From June 1, 2020 Hearing 11 2455 - 2462
07/06/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Order 11 2463 - 2472
07/20/2020 Defendant's Motion To Extend Rebuttal Expert Deadline And For 

Attorney's Fees
11 2473 - 2484

07/21/2020 Ex Parte Application For An Order Shortening Time On Defendant's 
Motion To Extend Rebuttal Expert Deadline And For Attorney's Fees

11 2485 - 2487

07/21/2020 Stipulation And Order To Withdraw 11 2488 - 2490
07/21/2020 Notice Of Entry Of The Stipulation And Order To Withdraw 11 2491 - 2496
07/24/2020 Defendant's Motion To Extend Rebuttal Expert Deadline And For 

Attorney's Fees
11 2497 - 2508

07/29/2020 Defendant's Motion To Continue Trial (Second Request) 11 2509 - 2525
07/31/2020 Ex Parte Application For An Order Shortening Time On Defendant's 

Motion To Continue Trial (Second Request)
11 2526 - 2529

08/03/2020 Non-Opposition To Defendant's Motion To Continue Trial And 
Countermotion For Sanctions

11 2530 - 2543

08/05/2020 Reply To Plaintiff's Non-Opposition To Defendant's Motion To 
Continue Trial And Opposition To Plaintiff's Countermotion For 
Sanctions

11 2544 - 2552

08/10/2020 Order To Continue Trial 11 2553 - 2556



CHRONOLOGICAL INDEX

FILED DOCUMENT VOL. PAGES
08/10/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Order To Continue Trial 11 2557 - 2562
08/19/2020 Order From The Hearing Held October 9, 2019 11 2563 - 2565
09/02/2020 Notice Of Appeal 11 2566 - 2568
09/02/2020 Case Appeal Statement 11 2569 - 2574
09/10/2020 Order From June 30, 2020 Hearing 11 2575 - 2578
09/10/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Order 11 2579 - 2584
09/21/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Order From October 9, 2019 Hearing 11 2585 - 2589
10/07/2020 Plaintiff's Motion To Clarify Courts June 30th Order After Hearing 11 2590 - 2595
10/07/2020 Defendant's Motion For Clarification And Modification Of Court 

Release Regarding Custody Evaluation And For Sanctions And Fees 
Against Plaintiff

11 2596 - 2608

10/07/2020 Exhibits To Motion For Clarification And Modification Of Court 
Release Regarding Custody Evaluation And For Sanctions And Fees 
Against Plaintiff

11 2609 - 2628

10/07/2020 Amended Motion For Clarification And Modification Of Court Release 
Regarding Custody Evaluation And For Sanctions And Fees Against 
Plaintiff

12 2629 - 2642

10/12/2020 Ex Parte Application For An Order Shortening Time On Defendant's 
Amended Motion For Clarification And Modification Of Court Release 
Regarding Custody Evaluation And For Sanctions And Fees Against 
Plaintiff

12 2643 - 2646

10/20/2020 Opposition To Plaintiff's Motion To Clarify Court's June 30th Order 
After Hearing

12 2647 - 2657

10/20/2020 Plaintiff's Opposition To Defendant's Motion For Clarification And 
Modification Of Court Release Regarding Custody Evaluation And For 
Sanctions And Fees Against Plaintiff

12 2658 - 2676

10/21/2020 Order Shortening Time 12 2677 - 2679
10/21/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Order Shortening Time 12 2680 - 2684
10/29/2020 Minute Order 12 2685 - 2687
11/06/2020 Defendant's Brief Regarding Confidentiality Agreement 12 2688 - 2694
11/09/2020 Reply To Opposition To Plaintiff's Motion To Clarify Court's June 30th 

Order After Hearing
12 2695 - 2702

11/10/2020 Minute Order 12 2703 - 2704
11/13/2020 Plaintiff's Brief Regarding Confidentiality Agreement 12 2705 - 2710
11/13/2020 Stipulation And Order Regarding Confidentiality Agreement 12 2711 - 2717
11/16/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Stipulation And Order 12 2718 - 2726
12/14/2020 Plaintiff's Motion To Terminate Temporary Spousal Support 12 2727 - 2733
12/28/2020 Opposition To Motion To Terminate Temporary Spousal Support And 

Countermotion For Attorney's Fees
12 2734 - 2746

01/04/2021 Ex Parte Application For An Order Shortening Time On Plaintiff's 
Motion To Terminate Temporary Spousal Support.

12 2747 - 2753

01/04/2021 Reply To Opposition To Motion To Terminate Temporary Spousal 
Suppot And Opposition To Countermotion

12 2754 - 2765

01/05/2021 Plaintiff's Motion To Reassign 12 2766 - 2732



CHRONOLOGICAL INDEX

FILED DOCUMENT VOL. PAGES
01/05/2021 Ex Parte Application For An Order Shortening Time On Plaintiff's 

Motion To Reassign
12 2733 - 2779

01/08/2021 Minute Order 12 2780 - 2781
01/12/2021 Notice Of Department Reassignment 12 2782 - 2784
03/09/2021 Order From February 18, 2021 Hearing 13 2785 - 2789
03/09/2021 Notice Of Entry Of Order 13 2790 - 2796
03/12/2021 Plaintiff's List Of Contested Art In His Possession And Art Believed To 

Be In Defendant's Possession
13 2797 - 2798

03/18/2021 Motion To Modify Temporary Physical Custody Pending Trial 13 2799 - 2808
03/19/2021 Ex Parte Application For An Order Shortening Time On Plaintiff''s 

Motion Modify Temporary Physical Custody Pending Trial
13 2809 - 2815

03/23/2021 Order Shortening Time 13 2816 - 2818
03/28/2021 Defendant's Opposition To Plaintiff's Motion To Modify Temporary 

Physical Custody Pending Trial And Countermotion For Sanctions And 
Attorney's Fees

13 2819 - 2832

03/28/2021 Exhibits To Opposition To Plaintiff's Motion To Modify Temporary 
Physical Custody Pending Trial And Countermotion For Sanctions And 
Attorney's Fees

13 2833 - 2846

04/22/2021 Defendant's Emergency Motion To Allow Witness To Appear Virtually 13 2847 - 2859

04/22/2021 Exhibits To Emergency Motion To Allow Witness To Appear Virtually 13 2860 - 2871

04/22/2021 Motion In Limine To Recognize Dr. Paglini As Neutral Expert 13 2872 - 2877
04/27/2021 Opposition To Plaintiff's Motion In Limine 13 2878 - 2884
04/29/2021 Plaintiff's Opposition To Defendant's Emergency Motion To Allow 

Witness To Appear Virtually
13 2885 - 2891

05/03/2021 General Financial Disclosure Form 13 2892 - 2899
05/03/2021 Defendant's Pre-Trial Memorandum 13 2900 - 2919
05/03/2021 Plaintiff's Pre-Trial Memorandum 13 2920 - 2945
05/04/2021 Order From March 30, 2021 Hearing 13 2946 - 2949
05/04/2021 Notice Of Entry Of Order 13 2950 - 2955
05/07/2021 Defendant's EDCR 7.17 Trial Brief 13 2956 - 2999
05/07/2021 Notice Of Association Of Co-Counsel In An Unbundled Capacity 13 3000 - 3001
05/13/2021 Plaintiff's Motion To Disqualify 13 3002 - 3016
05/14/2021 Opposition To Motion To Disqualify And Countermotion For 

Attorney's Fees And Sanctions
14 3017 - 3047

05/24/2021 Response To Defendant's Motion To Disqualify Judge 14 3048 - 3051
05/27/2021 Minute Order 14 3052 - 3053
06/02/2021 Reply To Opposition To Motion To Disqualify And Opposition To 

Countermotion For Fees And Sanctions
14 3054 - 3069

06/03/2021 Emergency Motion Regarding Summer Custodial Timeshare 14 3070 - 3092
06/03/2021 Exhibits To Emergency Motion Regarding Summer Custodial 

Timeshare
14 3093 - 3112



CHRONOLOGICAL INDEX

FILED DOCUMENT VOL. PAGES
06/03/2021 Ex Parte Application For An Order Shortening Time On Hearing For 

Plaintiff's Motion To Disqualify
14 3113 - 3118

06/04/2021 Order Shortening Time On Hearing For Plaintiff's Motion To 
Disqualify

14 3119 - 3121

06/04/2021 Notice Of Entry Of Order 14 3122 - 3126
06/09/2021 Minute Order 14 3127 - 3128
06/18/2021 Opposition To Defendant's Emergency Motion Regarding Custodial 

Timeshare
14 3129 - 3135

06/23/2021 Ex Parte Motion For Leave To File Reply To Opposition To 
Countermotion

14 3136 - 3140

06/23/2021 Amended Reply To Opposition To Motion To Disqualify And 
Opposition To Countermotion For Fees And Sanctions

14 3141 - 3157

06/24/2021 Decision And Order 14 3158 - 3165
06/24/2021 Ex Parte Application For An Order Shortening Time On Hearing On 

Emergency Motion Regarding Summer Custodial Timeshare
14 3166 - 3170

06/25/2021 Reply To Opposition To Emergency Motion Regarding Summer 
Custodial Timeshare

14 3171 - 3176

06/26/2021 Motion For Sanctions 14 3177 - 3186
06/27/2021 Opposition To Motion For Sanctions And Countermotion For 

Attorney's Fees And Sanctions
14 3187 - 3207

06/28/2021 Order Shortening Time 14 3208 - 3210
06/28/2021 Notice Of Entry Of Order 14 3211 - 3215
07/04/2021 Order (April 30, 2021 Hearing) 14 3216 - 3219
07/04/2021 Order From May 10, 2021 14 3220 - 3225
07/06/2021 Notice Of Entry Of Order 14 3226 - 3231
07/06/2021 Notice Of Entry Of Order 14 3232 - 3239
07/08/2021 Plaintiff's Financial Disclosure Form 14 3240 - 3250
07/22/2021 Minute Order 14 3251 - 3252
08/04/2021 Emergency Motion To Address Defendant's Intent To Withhold The 

Minor Children
14 3253 - 3261

08/04/2021 Ex Parte Application For An Order Shortening Time On Plaintiff's 
Emergency Motion To Address Defendant's Intent To Withhold The 
Minor Children

15 3262 - 3269

08/05/2021 Minute Order 15 3270 - 3271
08/06/2021 Opposition To Emergency Motion To Address Defendant's Intent To 

Withhold The Minor Children And Countermotion For Compensatory 
Time, Fees And Sanctions

15 3272 - 3284

08/06/2021 Errata To Defendant's Opposition To Emergency To Address 
Defendant's Intent To Withhold The Minor Children And 
Countermotion For Compensatory Time, Fees And Sanctions

15 3285 - 3287

08/08/2021 Order (July 8, 2021 Hearing) 15 3288 - 3292
08/23/2021 Reply In Support Of Emergency Motion To Address Defendant S Intent 

To Withhold The Minor Children
15 3293 - 3302

08/26/2021 Minute Order 15 3303 - 3305



CHRONOLOGICAL INDEX

FILED DOCUMENT VOL. PAGES
09/01/2021 General Financial Disclosure Form 15 3306 - 3317
09/16/2021 Association Of Counsel For Plaintiff 15 3318 - 3320
09/21/2021 Emergency Motion For Immediate Withdrawal Of Attorney 15 3321 - 3329
09/22/2021 Ex Parte Application For An Order Shortening Time On Defendant's 

Emergency Motion For Immediate Withdrawal Of Attorney
15 3330 - 3337

09/22/2021 Non-Opposition To Request For Order Shortening Time; Opposition To 
Facts Contained Within Request For Order Shortening Time

15 3338 - 3356

09/22/2021 Order Shortening Time 15 3357 - 3359
09/24/2021 Order To Withdraw As Counsel Of Record 15 3360 - 3363
09/27/2021 Notice Of Entry Of Order To Withdraw As Counsel Of Record 15 3364 - 3369
10/20/2021 Order (September 27, 2021) 15 3370 - 3373
12/21/2021 Motion To Expand Discovery To Include Up To Date Appclose 

Messges And Other Messages Sent By The Defendant
15 3374 - 3381

12/21/2021 Exhibits To Motion To Expand Discovery To Include Up To Date 
Appclose Messages And Other Messages Sent By The Defendant

15 3382 - 3394

12/27/2021 Notice Of Appearance 15 3395 - 3397
12/27/2021 Request And Order To Release Records 15 3398 - 3400
01/11/2022 Defendant's Opposition 15 3401 - 3406
01/19/2022 Reply In Support Of Motion To Expand Discovery To Include Up To 

Date Appclose Messages And Other Messages Sent By The Defendant
15 3407 - 3415

01/25/2022 Transcript from May 10, 2021 Evidentiary Hearing (Trial Day 1) 16 3416 - 3574
01/25/2022 Receipt of Copy of Transcript 16
01/25/2022 Certification of Transcripts Notice of Completion 16
01/25/2022 Final Billing of Transctips 16
02/08/2022 Order From January 21, 2022 Trial 16 3578 - 3581
03/03/2022 Defendant's Financial Disclosure Form 16 3582 - 3592
03/04/2022 Plaintiff's Financial Disclosure Form 16 3593 - 3603
03/07/2022 Minute Order 16 3604 - 3605
03/16/2022 Defendant's Motion To Place On Calendar And Take Testimony 16 3606 - 3615
03/16/2022 Motion For Order Shortening Time 16 3616 - 3622
03/16/2022 Order Shortening Time 16 3623 - 3625
03/17/2022 Ex Parte Application For An Order Shortening Time On Defendant's 

Motion To Place On Calendar And Take Testimony
16 3626 - 3633

03/18/2022 Pecos Law Group's Memorandum Of Fees And Costs Per Court's 
Instruction On March 4, 2022

17 3634 - 3742

05/09/2022 Order From April 14, 2022 Motion Hearing 17 3743 - 3746
05/12/2022 Memorandum Of Fees And Costs 17 3747 - 3752
05/13/2022 Motion To Reconsider Decision After Defendant's Motion To Place On 

Calendar And Take Testimony
17 3753 - 3764

05/18/2022 Ex Parte Application For An Order Shortening Time On Plaintiff's 
Motion To Reconsider Decision After Defendant's Motion To Place On 
Calendar And Take Testimony

17 3765 - 3771

05/18/2022 Defendant's Closing Brief 17 3772 - 3791

3575
3576
3577



CHRONOLOGICAL INDEX

FILED DOCUMENT VOL. PAGES
05/19/2022 Ex Parte Application For An Order Shortening Time On Plaintiff's 

Motion To Reconsider Decision After Defendant's Motion To Place On 
Calendar And Take Testimony

17 3792 - 3798

05/24/2022 Defendant's Opposition 17 3799 - 3813
05/25/2022 Decree Of Divorce 17 3814 - 3869
05/26/2022 Notice Of Entry 18 3870 - 3926
05/27/2022 Emergency Motion To Stay Judgement Pending Appeal 18 3927 - 3946
05/27/2022 Emergency Ex Parte Application For An Order Shortening Time On 

Plaintiffs Emergency Motion To Stay Judgement Pending Appeal
18 3947 - 3953

05/27/2022 Notice Of Appeal 18 3954 - 3955
05/27/2022 Opposition And Countermotion 18 3956 - 3972
05/31/2022 Order Re: Stay 18 3973 - 3977
05/31/2022 Notice Of Entry 18 3978 - 3983
06/06/2022 Case Appeal Statement 18 3984 - 3987
09/08/2022 Request For Rough Draft Transcript 18 3988 - 3990
09/13/2022 Estimate Of Rough Draft Transcripts 18 3991 - 3992
11/02/2022 Certification of Transcripts Notice of Completion 18
11/02/2022 Transcript from January 21, 2022 Evidentiary Hearing (Trial Day 2) 19 3994 - 4155
11/02/2022 Transcript from March 1, 2022 Evidentiary Hearing (Trial Day 3) 20 4156 - 4402
11/02/2022 Transcript from March 2, 2022 Evidentiary Hearing (Trial Day 4) 21 4403 - 4669
11/02/2022 Transcript from March 3, 2022 Evidentiary Hearing (Trial Day 5) 22 4670 - 4770
11/02/2022 Transcript from April 14, 2022 Hearing (Trial Decision) 22 4771 - 4791

3993



ALPHABETICAL INDEX

FILED DOCUMENT VOL.
01/31/2019 Affidavit Of Resident Witness 1 14 - 15
09/20/2019 Affidavit Of Resident Witness 3 657 - 658
02/07/2019 Amended Answer And Counterclaim 1 40 - 47
10/07/2020 Amended Motion For Clarification And Modification Of Court Release 

Regarding Custody Evaluation And For Sanctions And Fees Against 
Plaintiff

12 2629 - 2642

02/07/2019 Amended Motion To Set Aside Default; For Exclusive Possession Of 
The Marital Residence And Ordering Plaintiff To Assist In Making 
Mortgage Payments; For Medical Legal Custody Of The Minor 
Children, For An Order Referring The Parties To Mediation Pursuant 
To EDCR 5.70, For An Order Awarding Defendant Child Support For 
An Order Awarding Defendant Alimony; And For Attorney Fees And 
Costs

1 62 - 75

06/23/2021 Amended Reply To Opposition To Motion To Disqualify And 
Opposition To Countermotion For Fees And Sanctions

14 3141 - 3157

02/04/2019 Answer And Counterclaim 1 26 - 34
04/27/2020 Appendix Of Exhibits In Support Of Motion For An Order To Permit 

Plaintiff To Retain The Sick Minor Children Pursuant To Their 
Pediatrician's Directive; For Attorney's Fees And Costs Related Relief

9 2100 - 2129

11/26/2019 Appendix Of Exhibits In Support Of Objection To Discovery 
Commissioners Report And Recommendations Filed November 12, 
2019

6 1245 - 1280

05/14/2019 Appendix Of Exhibits In Support Of Plaintiff's Emergency Motion For 
A Change Of Custody; For Attorney's Fees And Costs And Related 
Relief

2 300 - 391

10/24/2019 Appendix Of Exhibits In Support Of Plaintiff's Opposition To 
Defendant's Motion For Temporary Spousal Support And Preliminary 
Attorney's Fees And Countermotion For Attorney's Fees And Costs

4 843 - 850

11/26/2019 Appendix Of Exhibits In Support Of Plaintiff's Opposition To Mr. 
Lloyd's Motion For Protective Order And Countermotion For 
Attorney's Fees And Costs

6 1297 - 1332

06/11/2019 Appendix Of Exhibits In Support Of Plaintiff's Reply In Support Of 
Emergency Motion For A Change Of Custody; For Attorney's Fees And 
Costs And Related Relief And Opposition To Countermotion For 
Change Of Custody For Primary Physical And Sole Legal Custody, 
Psychological Evaluation Of The Plaintiff

2 454 - 471

01/23/2020 Appendix Of Exhibits In Support Of Plaintiff's Reply In Support Of 
Plaintiff's Motion For Reconsideration Of The Court's December 9, 
2019 Decision; For Proof Of Chalese's Auto Insurance For The Last 
Year; And Related Relief; And Opposition To Defendant's 
Countermotion To Restore Joint Physical Custody And For Attorney's 
Fees

8 1705 - 1739

11/12/2019 Appendix Of Exhibits In Support Of Plaintiff's Response In Support Of 
Opposition

5 972 - 1038

PAGES



ALPHABETICAL INDEX

FILED DOCUMENT VOL. PAGES
02/26/2019 Appendix Of Exhibits To Plaintiff's Opposition To Amended Motion 

To Set Aside Default; For Exclusive Possession Of The Marital 
Residence And Ordering Plaintiff To Assist In Making Mortgage 
Payments; For Medical Legal Custody Of The Minor Children; For An 
Order Referring The Parties To Mediation Pursuant To EDCR 5.70, 
For An Order Awarding Plaintiff Child Support; For An Order 
Awarding Defendant Alimony; And For Attorney's Fees And Costs 
Primary Physical Custody, Child Support, And Attorney's Fees And 
Costs And Countermotion For Joint Legal Custody; Primary Physical 
Custody To Plaintiff And Supervised Visitation To Defendant; To 
Establish Child Support; To Establish Payment Of Marital Expenses; 
For An Order Protecting The Parties Community Property; Defendant 
To Obtain Employment And To Cooperate In A Vocational Assessment

1 126 - 173

05/24/2019 Appendix Of Supplemental Exhibits In Support Of Plaintiff's 
Emergency Motion For A Change Of Custody; For Attorney's Fees And 
Costs And Related Relief

2 401 - 404

04/09/2020 Appendix Of Supplemental Exhibits To Plaintiff's Motion For A 
Change Of Custody Based On Defendant's Endangerment Of The Minor 
Children; For Marie's Birth Certificate And Related Relief

9 2046 - 2074

03/18/2019 Appendix Of Supplemental Exhibits To Plaintiff's Opposition To 
Amended Motion To Set Aside Default; For Exclusive Possession Of 
The Marital Residence And Ordering Plaintiff To Assist In Making 
Mortgage Payments; For Medical Legal Custody Of The Minor 
Children; For An Order Referring The Parties To Mediation Pursuant 
To EDCR 5.70, For An Order Awarding Plaintiff Child Support; For 
An Order Awarding Defendant Alimony; And For Attorney's Fees And 
Costs Primary Physical Custody, Child Support, And Attorney's Fees 
And Costs And Countermotion For Joint Legal Custody; Primary 
Physical Custody To Plaintiff And Supervised Visitation To Defendant; 
To Establish Child Support; To Establish Payment Of Marital 
Expenses; For An Order Protecting The Parties Community Property; 
Defendant To Obtain Employment And To Cooperate In A Vocational 
Assessment

1 196 - 215

11/20/2019 Application For Order Shortening Time 5 1177 - 1179
09/16/2021 Association Of Counsel For Plaintiff 15 3318 - 3320
03/19/2019 Behavior Order 1 220 - 224
12/09/2019 Case And Non Jury Trial Management Order 7 1541 - 1544
03/19/2019 Case And Non-Jury Trial Management Order 1 216 - 219
09/06/2019 Case And Non-Jury Trial Management Order 3 627 - 630
09/02/2020 Case Appeal Statement 11 2569 - 2574
06/06/2022 Case Appeal Statement 18 3984 - 3987
02/01/2019 Certificate Of Completion COPE Class 1 16 - 18
01/25/2022 Certification of Transcripts Notice of Completion 16 3576



ALPHABETICAL INDEX

FILED DOCUMENT VOL. PAGES
11/02/2022 Certification of Transcripts Notice of Completion 18
01/04/2019 Complaint For Divorce 1 1 - 6
06/24/2021 Decision And Order 14 3158 - 3165
05/25/2022 Decree Of Divorce 17 3814 - 3869
01/29/2019 Default 1
09/09/2019 Defendant, Chalese Solinger's List Of Witnesses For Trial 3 631 - 636
11/06/2020 Defendant's Brief Regarding Confidentiality Agreement 12 2688 - 2694
05/18/2022 Defendant's Closing Brief 17 3772 - 3791
05/07/2021 Defendant's EDCR 7.17 Trial Brief 13 2956 - 2999
04/22/2021 Defendant's Emergency Motion To Allow Witness To Appear Virtually 13 2847 - 2859

03/03/2022 Defendant's Financial Disclosure Form 16 3582 - 3592
11/22/2019 Defendant's Joinder To Joshua Lloyd's Motion For Protective Order 

And Countermotion For Fees From Plaintiff To Defendant
5 1201 - 1212

11/15/2019 Defendant's Motion For A Custody Evaluation, Attorney's Fees, And 
Related Relief

5 1054 - 1072

05/22/2020 Defendant's Motion For An Order To Show Cause As To Why Plaintiff 
Should Not Be Held In Contempt, For Orders Regarding Health 
Insurance And Spousal Support, For Attorney's Fees, And Related 
Relief

10 2243 - 2272

10/07/2020 Defendant's Motion For Clarification And Modification Of Court 
Release Regarding Custody Evaluation And For Sanctions And Fees 
Against Plaintiff

11 2596 - 2608

10/09/2019 Defendant's Motion For Temporary Spousal Support And Preliminary 
Attorney's Fees

3 716 - 731

07/29/2020 Defendant's Motion To Continue Trial (Second Request) 11 2509 - 2525
08/28/2019 Defendant's Motion To Continue Trial, And For Issuance Of New Trial 

Management Order, Or In The Alternative To Extend Discovery 
Deadlines (First Request)

3 571 - 583

07/20/2020 Defendant's Motion To Extend Rebuttal Expert Deadline And For 
Attorney's Fees

11 2473 - 2484

07/24/2020 Defendant's Motion To Extend Rebuttal Expert Deadline And For 
Attorney's Fees

11 2497 - 2508

03/16/2022 Defendant's Motion To Place On Calendar And Take Testimony 16 3606 - 3615
02/07/2019 Defendant's Motion To Set Aside Default; For Exclusive Possession Of 

The Marital Residence And Order Plaintiff To Assist In Making 
Mortgage Payments; For Medical Legal Custody Of The Minor 
Children, For An Order Referring The Parties To Mediation Pursuant 
To EDCR 5.70, For An Order Awarding Plaintiff Child Support; For 
An Order Awarding Plaintiff Alimony; And For Attorney Fees And 
Costs

1 48 - 61

09/30/2019 Defendant's Notice Of Seminar Completion - EDCR 5.302 3 672 - 674
09/20/2019 Defendant's Notice Of UNLV Seminar Completion EDCR 5.07 3 655 - 656

3993
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FILED DOCUMENT VOL. PAGES
01/02/2020 Defendant's Objection To Plaintiff's Brunzell Affidavit For Attorney's 

Fees And Costs
7 1630 - 1636

02/25/2020 Defendant's Objection To Plaintiff's Supplemental Appendix 8 1850 - 1852
01/11/2022 Defendant's Opposition 15 3401 - 3406
05/24/2022 Defendant's Opposition 17 3799 - 3813
11/07/2019 Defendant's Opposition To Plaintiff's Motion To Compel Discovery 

Responses And For Attorney's Fees
4 931 - 939

03/28/2021 Defendant's Opposition To Plaintiff's Motion To Modify Temporary 
Physical Custody Pending Trial And Countermotion For Sanctions And 
Attorney's Fees

13 2819 - 2832

05/03/2021 Defendant's Pre-Trial Memorandum 13 2900 - 2919
10/02/2019 Defendant's Reply To Opposition To Defendant's Renoticed Motion To 

Continue Trial, And For Issuance Of New Trial Management Order, Or 
In The Alternative To Extend Discovery Deadlines

3 693 - 702

11/18/2019 Defendant's Response To Plaintiff's Response In Support Of Opposition 
To Defendant's Motion For Temporary Spousal Support And 
Preliminary Fees And Costs

5 1113 - 1128

01/23/2020 Discovery Cmmissioner's Report And Recommendations From 12/06/19 
Hearing

8 1740 - 1744

12/30/2019 Discovery Commissioners Report And Recommendations From 
12/06/19 Hearing

7 1576 - 1580

05/27/2022 Emergency Ex Parte Application For An Order Shortening Time On 
Plaintiffs Emergency Motion To Stay Judgement Pending Appeal

18 3947 - 3953

05/14/2019 Emergency Motion For A Change Of Custody; For Attorney's Fees And 
Costs And Related Relief

2 269 - 299

09/21/2021 Emergency Motion For Immediate Withdrawal Of Attorney 15 3321 - 3329
06/03/2021 Emergency Motion Regarding Summer Custodial Timeshare 14 3070 - 3092
08/04/2021 Emergency Motion To Address Defendant's Intent To Withhold The 

Minor Children
14 3253 - 3261

05/27/2022 Emergency Motion To Stay Judgement Pending Appeal 18 3927 - 3946
08/06/2021 Errata To Defendant's Opposition To Emergency To Address 

Defendant's Intent To Withhold The Minor Children And 
Countermotion For Compensatory Time, Fees And Sanctions

15 3285 - 3287

11/15/2019 Errata To Exhibits To Defendant's Motion For A Custody Evaluation, 
Attorney's Fees, And Related Relief

5 1110 - 1112

11/08/2019 Errata To Opposition To Plaintiff's Motion To Compel Discovery 
Responses And For Attorney's Fees

4 940 - 943

09/13/2022 Estimate Of Rough Draft Transcripts 18 3991 - 3992
10/12/2020 Ex Parte Application For An Order Shortening Time On Defendant's 

Amended Motion For Clarification And Modification Of Court Release 
Regarding Custody Evaluation And For Sanctions And Fees Against 
Plaintiff

12 2643 - 2646

09/22/2021 Ex Parte Application For An Order Shortening Time On Defendant's 
Emergency Motion For Immediate Withdrawal Of Attorney

15 3330 - 3337



ALPHABETICAL INDEX

FILED DOCUMENT VOL. PAGES
11/21/2019 Ex Parte Application For An Order Shortening Time On Defendant's 

Motion For A Custody Evaluation, Attorney's Fees, And Related Relief
5 1198 - 1200

07/31/2020 Ex Parte Application For An Order Shortening Time On Defendant's 
Motion To Continue Trial (Second Request)

11 2526 - 2529

07/21/2020 Ex Parte Application For An Order Shortening Time On Defendant's 
Motion To Extend Rebuttal Expert Deadline And For Attorney's Fees

11 2485 - 2487

03/17/2022 Ex Parte Application For An Order Shortening Time On Defendant's 
Motion To Place On Calendar And Take Testimony

16 3626 - 3633

06/03/2021 Ex Parte Application For An Order Shortening Time On Hearing For 
Plaintiff's Motion To Disqualify

14 3113 - 3118

06/24/2021 Ex Parte Application For An Order Shortening Time On Hearing On 
Emergency Motion Regarding Summer Custodial Timeshare

14 3166 - 3170

03/19/2021 Ex Parte Application For An Order Shortening Time On Plaintiff''s 
Motion Modify Temporary Physical Custody Pending Trial

13 2809 - 2815

08/04/2021 Ex Parte Application For An Order Shortening Time On Plaintiff's 
Emergency Motion To Address Defendant's Intent To Withhold The 
Minor Children

15 3262 - 3269

01/05/2021 Ex Parte Application For An Order Shortening Time On Plaintiff's 
Motion To Reassign

12 2733 - 2779

05/18/2022 Ex Parte Application For An Order Shortening Time On Plaintiff's 
Motion To Reconsider Decision After Defendant's Motion To Place On 
Calendar And Take Testimony

17 3765 - 3771

05/19/2022 Ex Parte Application For An Order Shortening Time On Plaintiff's 
Motion To Reconsider Decision After Defendant's Motion To Place On 
Calendar And Take Testimony

17 3792 - 3798

01/04/2021 Ex Parte Application For An Order Shortening Time On Plaintiff's 
Motion To Terminate Temporary Spousal Support.

12 2747 - 2753

06/03/2020 Ex Parte Application For An Order To Show Cause 10 2326 - 2362
06/05/2019 Ex Parte Motion For An Order Shortening Time 2 420 - 429
02/04/2020 Ex Parte Motion For An Order Shortening Time 8 1754 - 1757
03/31/2020 Ex Parte Motion For An Order Shortening Time 9 1984 - 1987
06/22/2020 Ex Parte Motion For An Order Shortening Time 11 2381 - 2384
11/14/2019 Ex Parte Motion For An Order To Release Electronics To Adam's 

Agent Or, In The Alternative, For An Order Barring The Release Of 
Electronics Until Further Court Order

5 1039 - 1053

06/23/2021 Ex Parte Motion For Leave To File Reply To Opposition To 
Countermotion

14 3136 - 3140

09/30/2019 Ex Parte Motion For Order Shortening Time To Hear Defendant's 
Motion To Continue Trial, And For Issuance Of New Trial 
Management Order, Or In The Alternative To Extend Discovery 
Deadlines

3 675 - 678



ALPHABETICAL INDEX

FILED DOCUMENT VOL. PAGES
08/29/2019 Ex Parte Motion For Order Shortening Time To Hear Defendant's 

Motion To Continue Trial, And For Issuance Of New Trial 
Management Order, Or In The Alternative To Extend Discovery 
Deadlines (First Request0

3 604 - 608

02/05/2019 Ex Parte Motion To Vacate Or Continue Hearing 1 35 - 39
03/16/2020 Exhibit Appendix To Plaintiff's Motion For An Order To Show Cause 

And To Hold Defendant In Contempt Of Court For Violation Of The 
March 19, 2019 Order, The June 17, 2019 Order, And The Behavior 
Order Filed March 19, 2019; For Attorney's Fees And Costs And 
Related Relief And Counter Motion To Enforce Phone Contact With 
The Minor Children And For Attorney's Fees

8 1879 - 1892

11/22/2019 Exhibits To Defendant's Joinder To Joshua Lloyd's Motion For 
Protective Order And Countermotion For Fees From Plaintiff To 
Defendant

5 1213 - 1222

11/15/2019 Exhibits To Defendant's Motion For A Custody Evaluation, Attorney's 
Fees, And Related Relief

5 1073 - 1109

05/22/2020 Exhibits To Defendant's Motion For An Order To Show Cause As To 
Why Plaintiff Should Not Be Held In Contempt, For Order Regarding 
Health Insurance And Spousal Support, For Attorney's Fees, And 
Related Relief

10 2273 - 2307

10/09/2019 Exhibits To Defendant's Motion For Temporary Spousal Support And 
Preliminary Attorney's Fees

4 732 - 803

08/28/2019 Exhibits To Defendant's Motion To Continue Trial, And For Issuance 
Of New Trial Management Order, Or In The Alternative To Extend 
Discovery Deadlines (First Request)

3 584 - 598

11/18/2019 Exhibits To Defendant's Response To Plaintiff's Response In Support 
Of Opposition To Defendant's Motion For Temporary Spousal Support 
And Preliminary Fees And Costs

5 1129 - 1163

06/03/2021 Exhibits To Emergency Motion Regarding Summer Custodial 
Timeshare

14 3093 - 3112

04/22/2021 Exhibits To Emergency Motion To Allow Witness To Appear Virtually 13 2860 - 2871

10/07/2020 Exhibits To Motion For Clarification And Modification Of Court 
Release Regarding Custody Evaluation And For Sanctions And Fees 
Against Plaintiff

11 2609 - 2628

12/21/2021 Exhibits To Motion To Expand Discovery To Include Up To Date 
Appclose Messages And Other Messages Sent By The Defendant

15 3382 - 3394

04/28/2020 Exhibits To Opposition To Motion For An Order To Permit Plaintiff 
To Retain The Sick Minor Children Pursuant To Their Pediatrician's 
Directive; For Attorney's Fees And Costs And Related Relief And 
Countermotion For Make-Up Visitation Time; To Admonish Plaintiff 
To Abide By Joint Legal Custody Standards; For Attorney's Fees; And 
Related Relief

10 2163 - 2203



ALPHABETICAL INDEX

FILED DOCUMENT VOL. PAGES
06/26/2020 Exhibits To Opposition To Motion To Address Upcoming Trial Date 

And Findings In Regard To Chalese's Refusal To Timely Facilitate The 
Completion Of The Child Custody Evaluation And Countermotion For 
Plaintiff To File An Updated Fdf, For Attorney's Fees, And Related 
Relief

11 2418 - 2434

03/28/2021 Exhibits To Opposition To Plaintiff's Motion To Modify Temporary 
Physical Custody Pending Trial And Countermotion For Sanctions And 
Attorney's Fees

13 2833 - 2846

12/06/2019 Exhibits To Reply To Opposition To Defendant's Motion For A 
Custody Evaluation, Attorney's Fees, And Related Relief And 
Opposition To Countermotion For Attorney's Fees And Costs

7 1416 - 1495

11/04/2019 Exhibits To Reply To Opposition To Defendant's Motion For 
Temporary Spousal Support And Preliminary Attorney's Fees And 
Opposition To Countermotion For Attorney's Fees And Costs

4 889 - 930

01/25/2022 Final Billing of Transctips 16
10/09/2019 Financial Disclosure Form 4 804 - 814
07/15/2019 General Fiancial Disclosure Form 3 501 - 511
02/01/2019 General Financial Disclosure Form 1 19 - 25
02/26/2019 General Financial Disclosure Form 1 174 - 184
09/24/2019 General Financial Disclosure Form 3 659 - 669
05/22/2020 General Financial Disclosure Form 10 2308 - 2317
06/30/2020 General Financial Disclosure Form 11 2444 - 2454
05/03/2021 General Financial Disclosure Form 13 2892 - 2899
09/01/2021 General Financial Disclosure Form 15 3306 - 3317
01/11/2019 Joint Preliminary Injunction 1 11 - 12
05/12/2022 Memorandum Of Fees And Costs 17 3747 - 3752
07/23/2019 Minute Order 3 512 - 514
02/13/2020 Minute Order 8 1789 - 1791
10/29/2020 Minute Order 12 2685 - 2687
11/10/2020 Minute Order 12 2703 - 2704
01/08/2021 Minute Order 12 2780 - 2781
05/27/2021 Minute Order 14 3052 - 3053
06/09/2021 Minute Order 14 3127 - 3128
07/22/2021 Minute Order 14 3251 - 3252
08/05/2021 Minute Order 15 3270 - 3271
08/26/2021 Minute Order 15 3303 - 3305
03/07/2022 Minute Order 16 3604 - 3605
08/28/2019 Minute Order - No Hearing Held 3 565 - 567
03/31/2020 Motion For A Change Of Custody Based On Defendant's Endangerment 

Of The Minor Children; For Marie's Birth Certificate; For Attorney's 
Fees And Costs And Related Relief

9 1960 - 1983

06/13/2019 Motion For An Order To Show Cause 2 472 - 484

3577



ALPHABETICAL INDEX

FILED DOCUMENT VOL. PAGES
02/21/2020 Motion For An Order To Show Cause And To Hold Defendant In 

Contempt Of Court For Violation Of The March 19, 2019 Order, The 
June 17, 2019 Order, And The Behavior Order Filed March 19, 2019; 
For Attorney's Fees And Costs And Related Relief

8 1815 - 1832

07/25/2019 Motion For Division Of The Proceeds From The Sale Of The Marital 
Home, And For Attorney's Fees

3 515 - 520

03/16/2022 Motion For Order Shortening Time 16 3616 - 3622
11/19/2019 Motion For Protective Order 5 1164 - 1176
12/27/2019 Motion For Reconsideration Of The Court's December 9, 2019 

Decision; For Proof Of Chalese's Auto Insurance For The Last Year; 
And Related Relief

7 1557 - 1575

06/26/2021 Motion For Sanctions 14 3177 - 3186
04/22/2021 Motion In Limine To Recognize Dr. Paglini As Neutral Expert 13 2872 - 2877
12/21/2021 Motion To Expand Discovery To Include Up To Date Appclose 

Messges And Other Messages Sent By The Defendant
15 3374 - 3381

03/18/2021 Motion To Modify Temporary Physical Custody Pending Trial 13 2799 - 2808
05/13/2022 Motion To Reconsider Decision After Defendant's Motion To Place On 

Calendar And Take Testimony
17 3753 - 3764

08/23/2019 Motion To Withdraw And Adjudicate Attorney's Lien 3 542 - 561
01/27/2020 Motion To Withdraw As Attorney Of Record For Defendant 8 1745 - 1753
02/06/2020 No Contact Order 8 1758 - 1760
08/03/2020 Non-Opposition To Defendant's Motion To Continue Trial And 

Countermotion For Sanctions
11 2530 - 2543

09/22/2021 Non-Opposition To Request For Order Shortening Time; Opposition To 
Facts Contained Within Request For Order Shortening Time

15 3338 - 3356

02/21/2019 Notice Of 16.2 Early Case Conference 1 91 - 92
09/02/2020 Notice Of Appeal 11 2566 - 2568
05/27/2022 Notice Of Appeal 18 3954 - 3955
12/27/2021 Notice Of Appearance 15 3395 - 3397
02/14/2019 Notice Of Appearance Of Attorney 1 87 - 88
05/07/2021 Notice Of Association Of Co-Counsel In An Unbundled Capacity 13 3000 - 3001
03/20/2019 Notice Of Association Of Counsel 1 225 - 226
08/23/2019 Notice Of Attorney's Lien 3 562 - 564
01/12/2021 Notice Of Department Reassignment 12 2782 - 2784
05/26/2022 Notice Of Entry 18 3870 - 3926
05/31/2022 Notice Of Entry 18 3978 - 3983
08/28/2019 Notice Of Entry Of August 28, 2019 Minute Order 3 599 - 603
07/26/2019 Notice Of Entry Of July 23, 2019 Minute Order 3 521 - 524
02/06/2020 Notice Of Entry Of No Contact Order 8 1761 - 1766
01/22/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Order 8 1665 - 1668
02/06/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Order 8 1775 - 1784
05/27/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Order 10 2321 - 2325
07/06/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Order 11 2463 - 2472
09/10/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Order 11 2579 - 2584



ALPHABETICAL INDEX

FILED DOCUMENT VOL. PAGES
03/09/2021 Notice Of Entry Of Order 13 2790 - 2796
05/04/2021 Notice Of Entry Of Order 13 2950 - 2955
06/04/2021 Notice Of Entry Of Order 14 3122 - 3126
06/28/2021 Notice Of Entry Of Order 14 3211 - 3215
07/06/2021 Notice Of Entry Of Order 14 3226 - 3231
07/06/2021 Notice Of Entry Of Order 14 3232 - 3239
04/22/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Order After Hearing Of April 6, 2020 9 2079 - 2085
10/04/2019 Notice Of Entry Of Order After Hearing Of August 1, 2019 3 708 - 715
05/14/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Order After Hearing Of February 26, 2020 10 2212 - 2222
08/22/2019 Notice Of Entry Of Order After Hearing Of June 17, 2019 3 532 - 541
05/03/2019 Notice Of Entry Of Order After Hearing Of March 19, 2019 2 251 - 268
12/12/2019 Notice Of Entry Of Order After Hearing Of October 3, 2019 7 1549 - 1555
11/22/2019 Notice Of Entry Of Order After Hearing Of September 6, 2019 6 1226 - 1231
09/21/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Order From October 9, 2019 Hearing 11 2585 - 2589
02/20/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Order On Discovery Commissioner's Report And 

Recommendations
8 1800 - 1809

11/21/2019 Notice Of Entry Of Order Shortening Time 5 1193 - 1197
04/02/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Order Shortening Time 9 1999 - 2003
06/22/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Order Shortening Time 11 2387 - 2391
10/21/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Order Shortening Time 12 2680 - 2684
08/10/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Order To Continue Trial 11 2557 - 2562
03/13/2019 Notice Of Entry Of Order To Seal Records 1 187 - 191
09/27/2021 Notice Of Entry Of Order To Withdraw As Counsel Of Record 15 3364 - 3369
11/16/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Stipulation And Order 12 2718 - 2726
04/23/2019 Notice Of Entry Of Stipulation And Order Modifying Timeshare 1 230 - 235
06/29/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Stipulation And Order Regarding The Orders To 

Show Cause
11 2438 - 2443

04/01/2020 Notice Of Entry Of Stipulation And Order To Provide CPS Records 
And Drug Test Results To The Child Custody Evaluator

9 1991 - 1996

07/21/2020 Notice Of Entry Of The Stipulation And Order To Withdraw 11 2491 - 2496
09/09/2019 Notice Of Intent To File Opposition To Prior Counsel's Motion To 

Adjudicate Attorney's Lien
3 637 - 639

02/12/2020 Notice Of Non-Opposition To Motion To Withdraw As Attorney Of 
Record For Defendant

8 1787 - 1788

09/17/2019 Notice Of Seminar Completion 3 653 - 654
03/25/2020 Notice Of Seminar Completion EDCR 5.302 8 1894 - 1896
01/23/2020 Notice Of Withdrawal Of Attorney Of Record 8 1669 - 1671
11/26/2019 Objection To Discovery Commissioners Report And Recommendations 

Filed November 12, 2019
6 1232 - 1244

05/27/2022 Opposition And Countermotion 18 3956 - 3972
06/18/2021 Opposition To Defendant's Emergency Motion Regarding Custodial 

Timeshare
14 3129 - 3135



ALPHABETICAL INDEX

FILED DOCUMENT VOL. PAGES
12/04/2019 Opposition To Defendant's Motion For A Custody Evaluation, 

Attorney's Fees And Related Relief And Countermotion For Attorney's 
Fees And Costs

6 1374 - 1405

10/23/2019 Opposition To Defendant's Motion For Temporary Spousal Support 
And Preliminary Attorney's Fees And Countermotion For Attorney's 
Fees And Costs

4 815 - 842

08/30/2019 Opposition To Defendant's Motion To Continue Trial, And For 
Issuance Of New Trial Management Order, Or In The Alternative To 
Extend Discovery Deadlines (First Request); And Countermotion To 
Strike The Substitution Of Attorneys

3 609 - 624

10/02/2019 Opposition To Defendant's Renoticed Motion To Continue Trial, And 
For Issuance Of New Trial Management Order, Or In The Alternative 
To Extend Discovery Deadlines

3 681 - 692

08/06/2021 Opposition To Emergency Motion To Address Defendant's Intent To 
Withhold The Minor Children And Countermotion For Compensatory 
Time, Fees And Sanctions

15 3272 - 3284

09/13/2019 Opposition To Louis C. Schneider's Motion To Adjudicate Attorney's 
Lien

3 640 - 650

04/28/2020 Opposition To Motion For An Order To Permit Plaintiff To Retain The 
Sick Minor Children Pursuant To Their Pediatrician's Directive; For 
Attorney's Fees And Costs And Related Relief And Countermotion For 
Make-Up Visitation Time; To Admonish Plaintiff To Abide By Joint 
Legal Custody Standards; For Attorney's Fees; And Related Relief

10 2130 - 2162

06/29/2019 Opposition To Motion For An Order To Show Cause And 
Countermotion

2 485 - 500

06/27/2021 Opposition To Motion For Sanctions And Countermotion For 
Attorney's Fees And Sanctions

14 3187 - 3207

06/26/2020 Opposition To Motion To Address Upcoming Trial Date And Findings 
In Regard To Chalese's Refusal To Timely Facilitate The Completion 
Of The Child Custody Evaluation And Countermotion For Plaintiff To 
File An Updated Fdf, For Attorney's Fees, And Related Relief

11 2392 - 2417

05/14/2021 Opposition To Motion To Disqualify And Countermotion For 
Attorney's Fees And Sanctions

14 3017 - 3047

12/28/2020 Opposition To Motion To Terminate Temporary Spousal Support And 
Countermotion For Attorney's Fees

12 2734 - 2746

11/26/2019 Opposition To Mr. Lloyd's Motion For Protective Order And 
Countermotion For Attorney's Fees And Costs

6 1281 - 1296

05/28/2019 Opposition To Plaintiff's Emergency Motion For A Change Of 
Custody/Spousal Support/Child Support, For Attorney's Fees And Costs 
And Related Relief. Counter Motion For Change Of Custody For 
Primary Physical And Sole Legal Custody, Psychological Evaluation Of 
The Plaintiff

2 405 - 419
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FILED DOCUMENT VOL. PAGES
04/02/2020 Opposition To Plaintiff's Motion For A Change Of Custody Based On 

Defendant's Endangerment Of The Minor Children; For Marie's Birth 
Certificate; For Attorney's Fees And Costs And Related Relief And 
Countermotion For An Order To Show Cause, Compensatory Visitation 
Time, And Attorney's Fees

9 2007 - 2028

03/16/2020 Opposition To Plaintiff's Motion For An Order To Show Cause And To 
Hold Defendant In Contempt Of Court For Violation Of The March 19, 
2019 Order, The June 17, 2019 Order, And The Behavior Order Filed 
March 19, 2019; For Attorney's Fees And Costs And Related Relief 
And Counter Motion To Enforce Phone Contact With The Minor 
Children And For Attorney's Fees

8 1857 - 1878

01/03/2020 Opposition To Plaintiff's Motion For Reconsideration Of The Court's 
December 9, 2019 Decision; For Proof Of Chalese's Auto Insurance For 
The Last Year; And Related Relief; And Countermotion To Restore 
Joint Physical Custody And For Attorney's Fees

7 1637 - 1660

04/27/2021 Opposition To Plaintiff's Motion In Limine 13 2878 - 2884
10/20/2020 Opposition To Plaintiff's Motion To Clarify Court's June 30th Order 

After Hearing
12 2647 - 2657

07/04/2021 Order (April 30, 2021 Hearing) 14 3216 - 3219
08/08/2021 Order (July 8, 2021 Hearing) 15 3288 - 3292
10/20/2021 Order (September 27, 2021) 15 3370 - 3373
05/13/2020 Order After Hearing February 26, 2020 10 2204 - 2211
10/03/2019 Order After Hearing Of August 1, 2019 3 703 - 707
08/21/2019 Order After Hearing Of June 17, 2019 3 525 - 531
05/03/2019 Order After Hearing Of March 19, 2019 1 236 - 250
12/12/2019 Order After Hearing Of October 3, 2019 7 1545 - 1548
11/22/2019 Order After Hearing Of September 6, 2019 6 1223 - 1225
02/07/2019 Order For Family Mediation Center Services 1
05/09/2022 Order From April 14, 2022 Motion Hearing 17 3743 - 3746
04/22/2020 Order From April 6, 2020 Hearing 9 2075 - 2078
02/06/2020 Order From December 9, 2019 Hearing 8 1767 - 1774
03/09/2021 Order From February 18, 2021 Hearing 13 2785 - 2789
02/08/2022 Order From January 21, 2022 Trial 16 3578 - 3581
07/06/2020 Order From June 1, 2020 Hearing 11 2455 - 2462
09/10/2020 Order From June 30, 2020 Hearing 11 2575 - 2578
05/04/2021 Order From March 30, 2021 Hearing 13 2946 - 2949
07/04/2021 Order From May 10, 2021 14 3220 - 3225
08/19/2020 Order From The Hearing Held October 9, 2019 11 2563 - 2565
01/22/2020 Order On Discovery Commissioner's Report And Recommendations 7 1663 - 1664
02/19/2020 Order On Discovery Commissioner's Report And Recommendations 8 1792 - 1799
05/31/2022 Order Re: Stay 18 3973 - 3977
02/26/2020 Order Referring To Judical Settlement Program 8 1854 - 1855
02/07/2019 Order Setting Case Management Conference And Directing Compliance 

With NRCP 16.2
1 76 - 85

86
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09/16/2019 Order Setting Case Management Conference And Directing Compliance 

With NRCP 16.2
3 651 - 652

09/04/2019 Order Shortening Time 3 625 - 626
10/01/2019 Order Shortening Time 3 679 - 680
11/21/2019 Order Shortening Time 5 1180 - 1181
04/01/2020 Order Shortening Time 9 1997 - 1998
06/22/2020 Order Shortening Time 11 2385 - 2386
10/21/2020 Order Shortening Time 12 2677 - 2679
03/23/2021 Order Shortening Time 13 2816 - 2818
06/28/2021 Order Shortening Time 14 3208 - 3210
09/22/2021 Order Shortening Time 15 3357 - 3359
03/16/2022 Order Shortening Time 16 3623 - 3625
06/04/2021 Order Shortening Time On Hearing For Plaintiff's Motion To 

Disqualify
14 3119 - 3121

08/10/2020 Order To Continue Trial 11 2553 - 2556
03/12/2019 Order To Seal Records Pursuant To NRS 125.110(2) 1 185 - 186
05/27/2020 Order To Show Cause 10 2318 - 2320
02/20/2020 Order To Withdraw As Counsel Of Record 8 1810 - 1811
09/24/2021 Order To Withdraw As Counsel Of Record 15 3360 - 3363
03/18/2022 Pecos Law Group's Memorandum Of Fees And Costs Per Court's 

Instruction On March 4, 2022
17 3634 - 3742

02/14/2019 Petition To Seal Records Pursuant To NRS 125.110(2) 1 89 - 90
11/13/2020 Plaintiff's Brief Regarding Confidentiality Agreement 12 2705 - 2710
12/31/2019 Plaintiff's Brunzell Affidavit For Attorney's Fees And Costs 7 1581 - 1629
07/08/2021 Plaintiff's Financial Disclosure Form 14 3240 - 3250
03/04/2022 Plaintiff's Financial Disclosure Form 16 3593 - 3603
05/15/2019 Plaintiff's Initial Expert Witness List 2 392 - 400
03/12/2021 Plaintiff's List Of Contested Art In His Possession And Art Believed To 

Be In Defendant's Possession
13 2797 - 2798

04/26/2020 Plaintiff's Motion For An Order To Permit Plaintiff To Retain The Sick 
Minor Children Pursuant To Their Pediatrician's Directive, For 
Attorney's Fees And Costs And Related Relief

9 2086 - 2099

06/19/2020 Plaintiff's Motion To Address Upcoming Trial Date And Findings In 
Regard To Chalese's Refusal To Timely Facilitate The Completion Of 
The Child Custody Evaluation

10 2367 - 2380

10/07/2020 Plaintiff's Motion To Clarify Courts June 30th Order After Hearing 11 2590 - 2595
10/24/2019 Plaintiff's Motion To Compel Discovery Responses And For Attorney's 

Fees
4 851 - 868

05/13/2021 Plaintiff's Motion To Disqualify 13 3002 - 3016
01/05/2021 Plaintiff's Motion To Reassign 12 2766 - 2732
12/14/2020 Plaintiff's Motion To Terminate Temporary Spousal Support 12 2727 - 2733
12/12/2019 Plaintiff's Notice Of UNLV Seminar Completion EDCR 5.07 7 1556
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02/26/2019 Plaintiff's Opposition To Amended Motion To Set Aside Default; For 

Exclusive Possession Of The Marital Residence And Ordering Plaintiff 
To Assist In Making Mortgage Payments; For Medical Legal Custody 
Of The Minor Children; For An Order Referring The Parties To 
Mediation Pursuant To EDCR 5.70, For An Order Awarding Plaintiff 
Child Support; For An Order Awarding Defendant Alimony; And For 
Attorney's Fees And Costs Primary Physical Custody, Child Support, 
And Attorney's Fees And Costs And Countermotion For Joint Legal 
Custody; Primary Physical Custody To Plaintiff And Supervised 
Visitation To Defendant; To Establish Child Support; To Establish 
Payment Of Marital Expenses; For An Order Protecting The Parties 
Community Property; Defendant To Obtain Employment And To 
Cooperate In A Vocational Assessment

1 97 - 125

04/29/2021 Plaintiff's Opposition To Defendant's Emergency Motion To Allow 
Witness To Appear Virtually

13 2885 - 2891

10/20/2020 Plaintiff's Opposition To Defendant's Motion For Clarification And 
Modification Of Court Release Regarding Custody Evaluation And For 
Sanctions And Fees Against Plaintiff

12 2658 - 2676

05/03/2021 Plaintiff's Pre-Trial Memorandum 13 2920 - 2945
11/29/2019 Plaintiff's Reply In Support Of Motion To Compel Discovery 

Responses And For Attorney's Fees
6 1333 - 1345

01/23/2020 Plaintiff's Reply In Support Of Plaintiff's Motion For Reconsideration 
Of The Court's December 9, 2019 Decision; For Proof Of Chalese's 
Auto Insurance For The Last Year; And Related Relief; And Opposition 
To Defendant's Countermotion To Restore Joint Physical Custody And 
For Attorney's Fees

8 1672 - 1704

01/09/2019 Proof Of Service 1
09/30/2019 Re-Notice Of Hearing For Defendant's Motion To Continue Trial, And 

For Issuance Of New Trial Management Order, Or In The Alternative 
To Extend Discovery Deadlines

3 670 - 671

01/06/2020 Receipt Of Check 7
01/06/2020 Receipt Of Check 7

02/28/2020 Receipt Of Check 8

03/20/2020 Receipt Of Check 8
01/25/2022 Receipt of Copy of Transcript 16
12/09/2019 Referral Order For Outsourced Evaluation Services 7
06/11/2019 Reply In Support Of Emergency Motion For A Change Of Custody; 

For Attorney's Fees And Costs And Related Relief And Opposition To 
Countermotion For Change Of Custody For Primary Physical And Sole 
Legal Custody, Psychological Evaluation Of The Plaintiff

2 430 - 453

08/23/2021 Reply In Support Of Emergency Motion To Address Defendant S Intent 
To Withhold The Minor Children

15 3293 - 3302

1661
1662

1856

1893
3575
1540

10



ALPHABETICAL INDEX

FILED DOCUMENT VOL. PAGES
04/03/2020 Reply In Support Of Motion For A Change Of Custody Based On 

Defendant's Endangerment Of The Minor Children; For Marie's Birth 
Certificate; For Attorney's Fees And Costs And Related Relief And 
Opposition To Countermotion For An Order To Show Cause, 
Compensatory Visitation Time, And Attorney's Fees

9 2029 - 2045

05/19/2020 Reply In Support Of Motion For An Order To Permit Plaintiff To 
Retain The Sick Minor Children Pursuant To Their Pediatrician S 
Directives; For Attorney S Fees And Costs And Related Relief And 
Opposition To Countermotion For Make-Up Visitation Time; To 
Admonish Plaintiff To Abide By Joint Legal Custody Standards; For 
Attorney S Fees; And Related Relief

10 2223 - 2242

03/30/2020 Reply In Support Of Motion For An Order To Show Cause And To 
Hold Defendant In Contempt Of Court For Violation Of The March 19, 
2019 Order, The June 17, 2019 Order, And The Behavior Order Filed 
March 19, 2019; For Attorney's Fees And Costs And Related Relief 
And Partial Opposition To Countermotion To Enforce Phone Contact 
With The Minor Children And For Attorney's Fees

9 1897 - 1918

01/19/2022 Reply In Support Of Motion To Expand Discovery To Include Up To 
Date Appclose Messages And Other Messages Sent By The Defendant

15 3407 - 3415

02/25/2019 Reply To Counterclaim For Divorce 1 93 - 96
03/18/2019 Reply To Opposition And Countermotion 1 192 - 195
12/06/2019 Reply To Opposition To Defendant's Motion For A Custody 

Evaluation, Attorney's Fees, And Related Relief And Opposition To 
Countermotion For Attorney's Fees And Costs

6 1406 - 1415

11/04/2019 Reply To Opposition To Defendant's Motion For Temporary Spousal 
Support And Preliminary Attorney's Fees And Opposition To 
Countermotion For Attorney's Fees And Costs

4 869 - 888

06/25/2021 Reply To Opposition To Emergency Motion Regarding Summer 
Custodial Timeshare

14 3171 - 3176

06/02/2021 Reply To Opposition To Motion To Disqualify And Opposition To 
Countermotion For Fees And Sanctions

14 3054 - 3069

01/04/2021 Reply To Opposition To Motion To Terminate Temporary Spousal 
Suppot And Opposition To Countermotion

12 2754 - 2765

11/09/2020 Reply To Opposition To Plaintiff's Motion To Clarify Court's June 30th 
Order After Hearing

12 2695 - 2702

08/05/2020 Reply To Plaintiff's Non-Opposition To Defendant's Motion To 
Continue Trial And Opposition To Plaintiff's Countermotion For 
Sanctions

11 2544 - 2552

12/02/2019 Reply To Plaintiff's Opposition To Mr. Lloyd's Motion For Protective 
Order And Countermotion For Attorney's Fees And Costs

6 1346 - 1373

12/27/2021 Request And Order To Release Records 15 3398 - 3400
02/26/2020 Request For Child Protection Service Appearance And Records 8
01/04/2019 Request For Issuance Of Joint Preliminary Injunction 1

1853
7
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09/08/2022 Request For Rough Draft Transcript 18 3988 - 3990
02/12/2020 Request For Submission Of Motion To Withdraw As Counsel Of 

Record
8 1785 - 1786

11/12/2019 Response In Support Of Opposition 4 944 - 971
05/24/2021 Response To Defendant's Motion To Disqualify Judge 14 3048 - 3051
06/07/2020 Schedule Of Arrearages 10 2363 - 2366
12/06/2019 Second Supplemental Appendix Of Exhibits In Support Of Plaintiff's 

Response In Support Of Opposition To Defendant's Motion For 
Temporary Spousal Support And Preliminary Fees And Costs

7 1496 - 1536

04/22/2019 Stipulation And Order Modifying Timeshare 1 227 - 229
11/13/2020 Stipulation And Order Regarding Confidentiality Agreement 12 2711 - 2717
06/29/2020 Stipulation And Order Regarding Orders To Show Cause 11 2435 - 2437
03/31/2020 Stipulation And Order To Provide CPS Records And Drug Test Results 

To The Child Custody Evaluator
9 1988 - 1990

07/21/2020 Stipulation And Order To Withdraw 11 2488 - 2490
08/28/2019 Substitution Of Attorneys 3 568 - 570
04/02/2020 Substitution Of Attorneys 9 2004 - 2006
02/20/2020 Substituttion Of Attorney 8 1812 - 1814
01/09/2019 Summons 1 8 - 9
02/24/2020 Supplemental Appendix Of Exhibits In Support Of Plaintiff's Motion 

For Reconsideration Of The Court's December 9, 2019 Decision; For 
Proof Of Chalese's Auto Insurance For The Last Year; And Related 
Relief

8 1833 - 1849

03/30/2020 Supplemental Appendix Of Exhibits In Support Of Plaintiff's Reply In 
Support Of Motion For An Order To Show Cause And To Hold 
Defendant In Contempt Of Court For Violation Of The March 19, 2019 
Order, The June 17, 2019 Order, And The Behavior Order Filed March 
19, 2019; For Attorney's Fees And Costs And Related Relief And 
Partial Opposition To Countermotion To Enforce Phone Contact With 
The Minor Children And For Attorney's Fees

9 1919 - 1959

11/21/2019 Supplemental Appendix Of Exhibits In Support Of Plaintiff's Response 
In Support Of Opposition To Defendant's Motion For Temporary 
Spousal Support And Preliminary Fees And Costs

5 1182 - 1192

12/06/2019 Supplemental Declaration To Reply To Opposition To Defendant's 
Motion For A Custody Evaluation, Attorney's Fees, And Related Relief 
And Opposition To Countermotion For Attorney's Fees And Costs

7 1537 - 1539

11/02/2022 Transcript from April 14, 2022 Hearing (Trial Decision) 22 4771 - 4791
11/02/2022 Transcript from January 21, 2022 Evidentiary Hearing (Trial Day 2) 19 3994 - 4155
11/02/2022 Transcript from March 1, 2022 Evidentiary Hearing (Trial Day 3) 20 4156 - 4402
11/02/2022 Transcript from March 2, 2022 Evidentiary Hearing (Trial Day 4) 21 4403 - 4669
11/02/2022 Transcript from March 3, 2022 Evidentiary Hearing (Trial Day 5) 22 4670 - 4770
01/25/2022 Transcript from May 10, 2021 Evidentiary Hearing (Trial Day 1) 16 3416 - 3574
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA THURSDAY, MARCH 3, 2022

P R O C E E D I N G S

(THE PROCEEDINGS BEGAN AT 10:08:51)

THE COURT:  Good morning.  We are on the record in

case number D-19-582245-D, Solinger versus Solinger.  Ms.

Cramer, may I please have your appearance?

MS. CRAMER:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Michancy

Cramer, bar number 11545, for the Defendant who is with us

here today.

THE COURT:  All right, welcome.  And -- and your

attorney's going to be coming in -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  He'll be coming in at -- 

THE COURT:  -- when he's -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- some point. 

THE COURT:  -- done.

THE PLAINTIFF:  He's -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- on his way, yeah.

THE COURT:  All right.  And I recognize that you --

you are a good attorney.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Thank you.

THE COURT:  All right.  Okay.  Let's put somebody

back in the hot seat.
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MS. CRAMER:  That's you. 

THE COURT:  Mom.

(WITNESS SUMMONED) 

THE COURT:  And remain standing.  We'll put you back

under oath. 

THE CLERK:  You do solemnly swear the testimony

you're about to give in this action shall be the truth, the

whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you God?

THE WITNESS:  Yes.  

THE COURT:  All right.  Are -- Mr. Cramer, you may

proceed. 

MS. CRAMER:  Okay.   

CHALESE SOLINGER

called as a witness on behalf of the Plaintiff, having been

first duly sworn, testified upon her oath as follows on:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. CRAMER:   

Q All right, so Chalese when you were in labor with

Michael can you describe Adam's behavior during that very

intensive labor for you?

A When he was at the hospital, my mother was there and

then partially my sister came at some point and they were

comforting me while Adam was sleeping on the couch.  When he

woke up, he asked if he could go home and shower, and that's
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what I thought he was doing.  It turned out he had gone for a

bike ride and they had called for my emergency C-section and

we couldn't get hold of Adam and he probably would have missed

it had it not been for the anesthesiologist was also MIA at

the time helping out with another stupid problem.

Q Okay.  So because the anesthesiologist couldn't get

there in time, there was time for him to get back to the

hospital?

A Yes.

Q Okay.  So I would like you to tell the Court about

what Adam did and what you and Michael did while Adam was

studying for the bar.

A While I was pregnant with Michael still, I would

often be sent away to my mother's house or my aunt's house, or

my grandma's ranch for weeks or months at a time so that he

could study without any interferences.  And once Michael was

born I was still having a lot of issues and it resulted in

another surgery a year later.  But taking care of a newborn

and helping me heal from a C-section was too much for him. 

And so for the first month-and-a-half of Michael's life, we

lived in Idaho at my aunt's house at my grandmother's ranch.

Q Okay.  Alright.  What kind of car do you drive?  

A Currently I drive a GMC pickup.

Q Okay.  And what year is it?
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A I believe it's a 2012.

Q Okay.  And where did you get that truck?

A My mom had to get it for me after Adam had taken my

vehicle away and she bought it secondhand from some ranch in

Florida.

Q Okay.  So you have a secondhand farm truck?

A Yes.

Q Okay.  And you and Josh go up to Utah and go

camping, correct?

A Correct.  

Q Okay.  And what is the speed limit on the freeway in

Utah?

A 80. 

Q Okay.  And how does your truck do on the freeway in

Utah?

A You can hear every noise, every bump in the road 

you feel and it starts to shake.

Q Okay.  So does your truck have an easy time doing 80

miles an hour?

A I wouldn't say so.

Q Okay.  So in reading the filings in this case, I

read over and over and over and over and over again about how

you drove a hundred miles an hour.  Do you think your truck

can even sustain a hundred miles an hour?
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A No.

Q Okay.  Did -- were you aware that you were being

followed?

A Yes.

Q Okay.  So do you ever recall in 2019, I believe

that's when it was, driving a hundred miles an hour on the

freeway?

A No.

Q Okay.  Alright.  I'm going to ask you about property

now.  With regard to Adam's retirement accounts, are you

requesting that you be awarded your community interest in

those accounts?

A Yes, I am.

Q With regard to any bank accounts, including savings,

money market, or any other liquid accounts, are you requesting

your community interest in those accounts?

A Yes, I am. 

Q And with regard to your respective homes, are you

requesting that each of you be rewarded -- be awarded your

homes?

A Yes.

Q Okay.  Do you and Adam have any personal property

that needs to be divided any further, like any kind of

jewelry, furniture, any kind of knickknacks, pots and pans,
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anything like that that needs to be divided?

A No.

Q Okay.  So you should each keep what you have?

A Yes.

Q Okay.

THE PLAINTIFF:  For the record, I'd stipulate to

that to make it easy.

THE COURT:  On what you each have?

THE PLAINTIFF:  Yeah, on what we each have.  That --

that's -- I -- I don't want to interrupt, but I would

stipulate to that so we can -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- make it easy.

MS. CRAMER:  Thank you. 

Q Would you agree that you and Adam are incompatible

in marriage? 

A Yes.

Q Would you agree that there's no chance of

reconciliation?

A Absolutely.

Q And do you want the Court to divorce you here today?

A Yes.

Q Okay.

THE COURT:  You know, I can't necessarily do it
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because I can't make the findings.

MS. CRAMER:  Well, that doesn't mean she doesn't

want you to do it. 

THE WITNESS:  Fairy godmother of mine, please.

  Q Alright.  So is -- and is it your request that you'd

be returned to your former name of Anderson?

A It is.

Q So your name would be returned to Chalese Marie

Anderson?

A Yes.

THE PLAINTIFF:  I'd stipulate Your Honor can do that

today.

THE COURT:  I can't.

THE PLAINTIFF:  You can't.

THE COURT:  I have to determine custody before I can

actually divorce.

THE PLAINTIFF:  And then name change could be

construed as ancillary to  the proceedings, just -- 

THE COURT:  Oh, to -- to let her have a name change? 

THE PLAINTIFF:  Yeah.  I -- I'm trying to be as

accommodating as possible given the trial -- 

MS. CRAMER:  Well, it's -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- and everything.

MS. CRAMER:  That's not really up for debate -- 

                                                                                                                                                                                  

  D-19-582245-D   SOLINGER   03/03/22   TRANSCRIPT  (SEALED)

VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC  (520) 303-7356

     

    9

004678



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

THE COURT:  It just -- 

MS. CRAMER:  -- anyway.

THE COURT:  It just goes into a decree.

THE PLAINTIFF:  It -- it does. 

THE COURT:  That way you only have to get one

certified copy for everything.

THE COURT:  Hold on.  Hold on.  Chalese Marie -- 

THE WITNESS:  Would -- 

THE COURT:  -- Anderson.

THE WITNESS:  Anderson.

THE COURT:  And it was Marie, right?

THE WITNESS:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Okay.  Because everyone talks about

Marie, not -- 

THE WITNESS:  Yes.  

THE COURT:  -- Maria.

THE WITNESS:  Well, it actually stems from Mary, my

Aunt Mary, but Mary didn't like her name.  She liked Marie. 

So I got the middle name Marie.  I wanted to name Marie a

whole bunch of things, but we settled on Marie, so -- 

THE COURT:  I even joked around about me calling my

daughter, what was it, Magnolia?  What was some of those other

-- hibiscus, because my mom wanted a flowery name.

THE WITNESS:  I wanted to name her Amethyst and call
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her Amy.  

THE COURT:  It's a pretty name.  Okay, go ahead. 

Please proceed.

MS. CRAMER:  Thank you, Your Honor.

BY MS. CRAMER:  

Q With regard to child custody, Chalese, do you ha --

has the week on, week off been working?

A Yes.

Q Okay.  And how are the children doing in your home

since you guys have had week on, week off starting in January?

A It was a rough first couple days getting used to

everything being there longer than, you know, two or three

days.  But since then, it's been great.  We've gotten into a

nice routine and everybody seems to like it.

Q Okay.  I want to ask you about Josh's marijuana use. 

Why does Josh use marijuana the way he does?

A With the amount of pain that he's in.  The medicine

that he has been given for his back is no longer really

helping as much as just a little bit of marijuana would relax

his muscles enough that he's not in so much pain from his torn

discs.

Q Okay.  And given that he's been prescribed pain

medication in the past, have you had an opportunity to observe

him taking pain medication?
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A I have.

Q And what is his demeanor?  What is his behavior like

when he's on prescribed pain meds?

A He gets sleepy and kind of loopy.

Q Okay.  And what is his behavior like when he smokes

a little bit of marijuana?

A It's like he's calm and relaxed and can function.  

Q Okay.  And would you ever allow Josh to drive your

children around after he had gotten high?

A Never.

Q Okay.  Have you and Josh discussed alternatives?

A We have.

Q Okay.  And does marijuana remain the -- what the two

of you believe is the best alternative?

A It's -- as of now, it is the best alternative for

him, but he is looking into other avenues such as -- I forget

-- they're -- they're -- it's kind of like an epidural into

his nerves every now and then before we can do any surgery.

Q Okay.  And he is also considering surgery?

A Yes.  First we have to get his heart surgery done so

that he could be cleared to have back surgery.

Q Okay.

THE COURT:  Let's take a short time so we can

recognize the esteemed Counsel.
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MR. GOODWIN:  Yes, Your Honor.  Charles Goodman, bar

number 14879.  I -- I apologize, Your Honor.  Weird situation.

Justice Court 15 called me and said that yesterday I told them

I'd be available for the preliminary hearing today which I

find impossible cause I was here the entire day.  I just --

I'm going to try and get on the BlueJeans and straighten that

out, but they're saying that I was in court yesterday saying

that I'm prepared to go and I don't know where that came from.

THE MARSHAL:  Are you prepared to go?

MR. GOODWIN:  I don't even know who the client is. 

It was appointed, I guess, yesterday and I said yeah, it's

okay; leave it on I guess in the minutes.  So they're trying

to figure out what's going on in the minutes.  If I can just

pop on their BlueJeans, I might be able to get -- 

THE COURT:  That's fine.

MR. GOODWIN:  -- some clarification.  If necessary,

Your Honor, I'll just call you as a witness that I was not in

Justice Court 15 yester -- 

THE COURT:  You know what, I would have no problem

saying nope, he was here with me all day.

MR. GOODWIN:  Thank you Your Honor.  I apologize.

THE COURT:  Okay.  

BY MS. CRAMER: 

Q So I know -- I hate to beat a dead horse, but I just
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want to touch on this briefly.  I know that Lou Schneider's

office had some devices which there was an allegation made

that there was some kind of child pornography on there.  Did

you ever observe any child pornography or any drawings of

child pornography or any anime of child pornography?

A Lou Schneider asked if I would like to look and I

said I would not.

Q Okay.  So you de declined to look at it?

A Yes.

Q Okay.  So, with regard to the FaceTime calls, has

Josh arranged FaceTime calls between Adam and the children?

A I think he might have once or twice.

Q Okay.  So he would have to have Adam's phone number

to do that?

A Yes.

Q Okay.  And you know, Your Honor, I'll -- I'll pass

the witness. 

THE COURT:  Okay.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Yeah.  

THE COURT:  That was rather abrupt.

MS. CRAMER:  Yes, I know.  I'm just going through my

notes and I'll just -- I'll pass the witness.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Might I suggest we take a -- a brief

recess and then at the -- I -- I guess myself --
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THE COURT:  Well --

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- and Mr. -- 

THE COURT:  -- we only have an hour-and-a-half -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  I -- 

THE COURT:  -- left.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Five -- five minutes.  I -- I guess

what I want to do is this.  Can we approach off record to

inquire procedurally about something?

THE COURT:  Correct.  Yes, we can.  We can go off.

(COURT RECESSED AT 10:21 AND RESUMED AT 10:23) 

THE CLERK:  We're back on. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  We are back on the record.

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY THE PLAINTIFF:  

Q Chalese, you testified that I took a truck away from

you?

A Yes.

Q Do you know who owned that truck?

A Your father.

Q And do you know whether that was my decision or his

decision?

A I can't say.

Q Do you recall a conversation where I relayed to you

that Josh had been driving the truck and my dad wasn't okay
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with that because he was the one carrying the insurance on it?

A Yes, I do.

Q And do you recall your response to that?

A Briefly.

Q What was that?

A Something along the line of Your dad had let me

borrow the truck and if he wanted to put restrictions on it, I

could hear from him and that until then I would continue to do

as I see fit.

Q And so you wouldn't agree to my dad's request to not

let Josh drive a truck that he was insured on, that my dad was

carrying the insurance on?

A Can you ask the question again?

Q Of course.  So you would not agree to prohibit Josh

from driving a vehicle that somebody else was carrying the

insurance on?

A I would have agreed, yes.

Q So -- 

A I had mentioned if I had heard from your dad because

the truck was an agreement between not just you and your dad,

but me as well.

Q When you say an agreement between you and my father

as well, can you expand on that?

A From my understanding, the vehicles were given to
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you and I, one for you, one for I.

Q And so your understanding is that his request to not

let Josh drive it couldn't be conveyed through me?  You wanted

to hear from directly?

A Well, considering that what you were saying at the

time, I didn't know what was truth or not.  I didn't believe

that that was coming from your father and not from you.

Q Ultimately, did you return the truck?

A I did.  Excuse me.  I did.

Q Have you taken Ambien previously?

A Yes.

Q What's your reaction when you take Ambien?

A I have a typical -- they call it acute amnesia.  

Q Has anyone ever told you what's happened when you

take Ambient?

A Yes, you have.

Q Anyone else?

A My mother.

Q And what has she said?

A That it was not a good fit and I have not been on it

since 2013.

Q And you told Dr. Paglini that you had been -- that

you'd taken Ambien previously?

A Yes.
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Q Did you tell him about your reaction?

A Yes, I did.

Q Did you tell Dr. O'Donahue (ph)?

A Dr. O'Donahue did not ask.

Q You had three interviews with Dr. O'Donahue?

A Yes, he wasn't concerned about any past medication. 

He was concerned about current medication. 

Q So his conclusion that there was no issue with you

taking the medications, including Ambien, do you agree with

his conclusion about Ambien?

A I never said that I was taking Ambien.  I said that

I had taken it in the past in 2013.

Q  And you've read his report?

A No, actually, I have not read his report.

Q You've never read Dr. O'Donahue's report? 

A I've briefed over it, but I have not been on Ambien

and I never once testified to being on Ambien previously.  I

-- not currently.  I had been on it previously, but I am not

currently.

Q You talked about FaceTime and how I don't let you

FaceTime with the kids.

A Correct.

Q And you recall when the Court modified the time to

8:00 a.m.?
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A Yes.  

Q And your position here is that you have tried to

call every time and I've never let you?

A No, that's not what I said.

Q Well, what did you say?  Could you clarify?

A I said the times that I did try, you didn't answer.

Q Okay.  So how often did you try?

A I don't know, off of the top of my head.

Q Well -- 

THE COURT:  Once, twice, once a week?

THE WITNESS:  I tried for the -- 

THE COURT:  Ten times?

THE WITNESS:  -- first -- first little bit -- 

THE COURT:  Give an approximate.

THE WITNESS:  -- when the time changed -- when the

time changed, I tried for the first maybe week or two and when

I was getting no response, I stopped calling.  It's -- I

figured it's 8:00 a.m.  I know it's a hassle for me in the

morning to get kids ready for school to get me ready for work,

and I imagine it's -- they're doing the same thing.

THE COURT:  So you tried for a week and when he

didn't answer, you stopped. 

THE WITNESS:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Okay.
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MS. CRAMER:  And Your Honor, I have to say just as

an aside, giving a FaceTime at 8:00 a.m. is bonkers.  She's

right.

THE COURT:  I think -- I think that was a time

though that we knew everybody could fit.

MS. CRAMER:  It did -- did, but -- but everybody

getting the kids ready -- 

THE COURT:  Was that my order or -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  That was -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.  

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- your order at -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.  

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- the -- 

MS. CRAMER:  It's -- that's, that's -- that a -- 

THE COURT:  That is a bonkers time.

MS. CRAMER:  It is a crazy time when you have young

ones getting them to school.  Kids are crazy and getting them

to -- 

THE COURT:  Did I do that on summertime?  I thought

I did summer.

MS. CRAMER:  Oh, summer would make more sense.  

THE PLAINTIFF:  I don't remember whether there was a

temporal limitation on it because it was previously 7:00 and

Mr. Fleeman (ph) -- 
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THE PLAINTIFF:  7:00 a.m., then I changed it to --

to 8:00 a.m.

THE PLAINTIFF:  It was -- 

THE WITNESS:  No.

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- 7:00 p.m.

THE WITNESS:  7:00 p.m.

THE COURT:  7:00 p.m.

THE PLAINTIFF:  And Mr. Fleeman made the argument

that my alleged continued refusal to allow her to FaceTime

constituted such a lack of co-parenting that it would go

against the return to primary that Your Honor ordered I

believe in approximately of July of last year.  And so, Your

Honor offered the alternative of 8:00 a.m. and there was no

objection or complaints during that time.  And then I think it

made its way into the order.  I think -- 

THE COURT:  Well -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- Jack drafted.

THE COURT:  -- you know, I -- and I -- and I -- and

-- and I don't know why I was thinking that Mom only had -- or

Mom had every weekend, not every other weekend.

MS. CRAMER:  Okay.  Weekends makes more sense, but

-- and summer makes me more sense.

THE COURT:  Well, no, she had weekends for her

visitation.
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THE PLAINTIFF:  It was -- 

THE COURT:  Dad had the rest of the time.

THE PLAINTIFF:  It was every other weekend and then

every other Wednesday through Friday was the schedule.

THE COURT:  Okay.

THE PLAINTIFF:  So it was -- it was equivalent of

two days a week.  It just wasn't every weekend.

THE COURT:  Okay.

THE PLAINTIFF:  It was -- 

THE COURT:  All right.  

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- so -- 

MS. CRAMER:  Yeah, the school days, I just don't see

that being workable.  But if it was summer, it was summer.  

THE COURT:  But I -- it -- well, yeah.  You know, I

-- I -- that may have been one of the things that I was

thinking.  I -- you know, you're asking me to try to remember

what I did and why in this case.  I was trying to make

something.

MS. CRAMER:  Understood.

THE COURT:  All right, go ahead, please.

BY THE PLAINTIFF:

Q Chalese, do you recall saying also I'll drop the

issue with the hand drawn child porn in return for you

dropping the laughable drug and alcohol screenings because you
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and I both know I don't like taking prescription drugs because

of what it does to my head, let alone be a drug and alcohol

abuser?

A Yes.

Q Sorry, to return to the FaceTime.  I got a little

sidetracked.  You said that you stopped trying approximately

two weeks ago when you were on direct?

A No, I didn't say approximately two weeks ago.

Q So there was no testimony about you not trying

within the last two weeks?

THE COURT:  Not trying what?

THE PLAINTIFF:  Not trying to FaceTime.

THE COURT:  Okay.

A I tried for the first little bit and then I stopped.

Q Well, I'm asking what your testimony was yesterday. 

Do you recall testifying about FaceTime?

A Yes, I do.

Q And do you recall saying that you had stopped trying

to FaceTime about two weeks ago or something to the effect

that you had not tried to FaceTime within the past two weeks?

A I said that I tried at the beginning and when you

didn't answer, then I stopped trying.

THE COURT:  I think her testimony was she tried for

a couple of weeks and then stopped.
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THE PLAINTIFF:  I -- I could swear it was that it

had been the last two weeks that she hadn't tried and that's

coincidentally the time frame that an iPhone call log

typically goes back to.  So that's why I'm trying to hone in

on that specific point.

Q Do you recall a CPS investigation?

A Yes.

Q Do you recall somebody contacting you?

A Yes.  

Q Do you recall hanging up on that person?

A No.

Q So if the CPS report says that they contacted you

and you told them it wasn't a good time, they have to call you

back, and then you hung up on them, that would not be

accurate?

A I said, This isn't a good time, I'll have to call

you back, and we hung up the phone.

Q And do you recall them coming to try to do a home

visit and no one answering?

A Yes, I recall being at the WIC office trying to get

assistance through the government for food and missing her by

about five minutes and calling her as soon as I got home

explaining everything and she was completely fine with it and

came back.
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Q And so if I were to proffer to you that that  didn't

make it into the report, would the report be inaccurate?

A I'm not sure.  I don't know what the report says. 

I'm just letting you know what I had said in the conversations

I had with the CPS investigation Renee (ph) -- I believe her

name is Renee.

Q So to be clear, your testimony is that you missed

her.

A Yes.

Q And you called her back?

A Yes.

Q And then she came and did the home visit.

A After we had a phone call.  Eventually she --

somebody came and did a home visit and deemed it uncredible --

or that's not the word.  I'm sorry.

Q Unsubstantiated.

A Unsubstantiated.  Thank you very much for that.   

Q As it relates to -- 

THE COURT:  I'm -- 

Q -- my -- 

THE COURT:  -- coughing a bit.

Q As it relates to Michael's pregnancy.  Obviously you

recall that?

A Yes.
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Q And do you recall the fact that they actually

induced you with Pitocin?

A No, they did not use Pitocin.

Q They induced you in some way, shape, or form?

A Yes, after being in active labor for two weeks at

home without progressing any, they finally decided to try to

speed things up.

Q And -- 

A I was already two weeks late.

Q As they induced you, you started to make progress.  

A Yes.

Q But then the mechanism they used to induce you

caused an allergic reaction?

A Yes.

Q And as a result, you failed to make progress.

A Yes.

Q And that is why emergency C-section was called.

A That among many other reasons, that was the reason

that the doctor thought was the most immediate and could get

me into a C-section the fastest.

Q And so your testimony is I was not there for any of

that and walked in to be dressed to take part in the

C-section?  I -- 

THE COURT:  Go ahead.  You're -- 
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A To be fair, you know what?  I don't know the exact

timeline.  I had been in the hospital for how many days

completely drugged up on who knows what.  So the parts that I

remember, any time that I was lucid enough and needing

support, you were either asleep on the chair and my mom and

sister were there holding my hand through contractions helping

me breathe or you were not there and I could not get a hold of

you because you were riding a bicycle.

Q But to be clear, I think your testimony on direct

minutes ago was that I almost missed it because I was gone.  

THE COURT:  No.

A Yes.

THE COURT:  You almost missed it because you were

MIA.

A The only reason that you were able to attend the

C-section was because the anesthesiologist was helping

somebody else and could not come to me.

Q So to be very clear, your position is that all of

that information I just relayed about how Michael was born

with the induction, with the allergic reaction, with the

failure to make progress, that I don't have firsthand

knowledge of that, that you don't know how I know that?

A No, it's all -- I would expect you to know that. 

It's the fact that you weren't there.  So I'm not sure what
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you're trying to ask me.

Q Well, I -- I don't want to play semantics, but if

I'm asking how I know that and if it's not via a firsthand

knowledge and then you said you expect me to know that, are

you saying somebody told me that or that I wasn't there?

A I'm saying you were my husband at the time and this

was our first child.  You obviously knew what was going on. 

You were getting text messages from my mom and sister about my

progress along the way if you were not there.  Now, whether

you were there to listen to it afterwards, hearing the nurses

talk about it, the doctors talk about it, putting it through

to -- you know, to and to through with text messages or you

being there for brief moments at a time hearing these things.

Q So this is obviously an important point to you

because you're talking about it.

A Because you brought it up.  Yes.

Q To be fair, you testified of -- about it on direct

which implies you probably strategized about with your

attorney.

A No, absolutely not.

MS. CRAMER:  Objection.  Don't answer that.  Don't

answer things when he asks you about what we talked about.

THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.  

MS. CRAMER:  That's privileged.
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THE COURT:  Yeah, don't ask her what she's discussed

with her attorney.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Understood.

THE COURT:  You're an attorney and you know better. 

THE PLAINTIFF:  I -- I'm not trying to -- 

MS. CRAMER:  And that's exactly what it was.  That

was -- 

THE COURT:  And -- 

MS. CRAMER:  -- so blatant. 

THE COURT:  No, let's just -- you know, let's give

him the benefit of a doubt unless he keeps doing it.

MS. CRAMER:  Fair enough, Your Honor. 

BY THE PLAINTIFF: 

Q Your testimony is that your truck cannot drive

faster than 80 miles an hour?

A No, I said it has a hard time going up to 80 miles

an hour.

Q And so it can go up to 80 miles an hour.

A Yes, it absolutely can.

Q What's the fastest you've driven your truck?

A I think I -- going down a hill cruising made it up

to 91.

Q I'd like to talk about August 27th of 2019.  Does

that day stick out to you for any reason?
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A That was the day before Marie's birthday.

Q Okay.  What did you do that day?

A You -- I -- I don't quite understand.  I don't

remember.

Q I'll be more direct.  You came to the house to pick

up Marie.

A Okay.

Q I'm sorry, is that a yes?

A Yes, I did.

Q And you had Ariel (ph) with you.

A Okay.  Yes.

Q And -- 

A Possibly.

Q Is that a yes?

A It's -- 

Q I -- 

A -- poss -- 

Q I don't want you to -- 

A I could have, yes.  I don't remember exactly if I

had another child with me or not.

Q And do you recall Jessica bringing Marie up to you? 

A Somebody brought Marie up to me.

Q Did I bring -- 

A I don't -- I don't recall who.
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Q Do you recall that Michael was not there at that

time?

A Yes, I do.

Q Do you know where Michael was?

A I was later told he was at speech therapy.  But at

the time, no.

Q So your testimony is that if we go through the

AppClose messages, there won't be a message from me telling

you that Michael and I are at speech therapy?

MS. CRAMER:  No, that's not what her -- objection,

Your Honor.  That misstates her testimony.  And this was -- 

THE COURT:  You do keep misstating her testimony.  I

have caught onto it twice that she's not said anything.  Don't

misstate her testimony unless you're saying I'm paraphrasing

it.

THE PLAINTIFF:  I -- I will add the paraphrase.  

THE COURT:  Thank you.

BY THE PLAINTIFF: 

Q You said I was later told that.

A Yes.

Q You're saying I was later told that because you are

-- correct me if I'm wrong, but that you were not informed at

the time you went to pick up Marie that Michael and I were in

speech therapy.
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A We communicate through AppClose.  If I'm driving,

I'm not looking at these messages through AppClose. 

Q After you picked up Marie, did you drive towards the

speedway?

A Yes.

Q And you ultimately dropped Marie off with someone.

A Yes.

Q And you went to the parenting class that Judge Moss

ordered that you attend?

A Yes.

Q So you came to pick up Marie just to take her to a

babysitter? 

A No.

Q Okay.  You came to pick up Marie?

A Yes. 

Q And then you dropped her off with somebody?

A Yes.

Q And then you went to your parenting class?

A Yes. 

Q And then you went back to get Marie?

A Yes, we were camping.

Q So you were camping out by the speedway?

A Yes.

Q And do you recall approximately what time you picked
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up Marie?

A No, I do not.

Q Do you recall the time your parenting class was

scheduled for?

A No, I do not off the top of my head.

Q So if the holiday order in place states that pick up

on children's birthdays is -- is is the day before at I

believe 4:00 o'clock, would that comport with your

recollection of what time?

A No, I believe I had to get off of work and yes, the

pick up time was starting at 4:00, but I would pick them up

when I got off of work.

Q And you started your testimony discussing a -- a

Ring camera out in front of the former marital house?

A Yes. 

Q And you -- I don't want to put words in your mouth

and I don't want to directly quote you, but you said something

to the effect that there was hours of footage of myself

sitting in front of the house.

MS. CRAMER:  I object to that too that -- because

she never said there was hours of footage.  She said she

observed it on the video.

THE COURT:  She said she observed it multiple times. 

MS. CRAMER:  Yes.
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THE COURT:  That's all she said.  She didn't say

hours.

THE PLAINTIFF:  And -- and I'm -- 

THE COURT:  She said she observed it multiple times. 

THE PLAINTIFF:  I'm really not trying to do anything

other than rephrase the testimony the best -- 

MS. CRAMER:  You know -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- I can. 

MS. CRAMER:  -- Your Honor, I'm going to object.  It

-- he has -- he tries to explain his -- his intentions

virtually every time he asks a question.  I would like that to

stop and I would like him to just ask her a question.  I would

also like him to stop misstating her testimony.  She said she

saw him on the Ring camera numerous times.  She did not say

there was hours of footage.  I know he's implying that she has

this footage somewhere or where is it?  She never testified

that she saved it.  She never testified that she had it in her

possession.  So -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  We're -- we're not even -- 

THE COURT:  The -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- there yet and -- 

THE COURT:  The -- the key -- but the problem is is

you both misstate what the witnesses has said and I've got a

good enough memory where I pick up every time the questions
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you all have asked misstates what has been said.  And I take

that into consideration.  I -- you know, she is right.  She

never said hours.  And I'm not sure where you're leading on

this, but I'm sure you have a point.  So let's get to it

because we have an hour and 15 minutes left.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Absolutely. 

BY THE PLAINTIFF: 

Q You never saved that footage?

A No.

Q You had Lou Schneider as your attorney at the time?

A Correct.

Q And you still didn't think to save the footage?  

MS. CRAMER:  Objection.  Relevance.  What does Lou

Schneider being her attorney have to do with saving Ring

footage?

THE COURT:  Other than the fact that he may be --

nevermind.  I'm not going to say what I was going to say.

MS. CRAMER:  I know what you're going to say.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Now I'm curious.

THE COURT:  Off the record, I may.  You'd be

surprised at how many people, even with great attorneys, don't

tell their clients to save text messages.

BY THE PLAINTIFF: 

Q There's been ample communication throughout this

                                                                                                                                                                                  

  D-19-582245-D   SOLINGER   03/03/22   TRANSCRIPT  (SEALED)

VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC  (520) 303-7356

     

    35

004704



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

case between the two of us.

A Yes.  And at times, have you ever claimed to have

saved videos? 

A What -- what kind of videos?

Q Just in general.

A Possibly.

Q And -- strike that.  Regarding speech therapy, did

you -- you testified yesterday about the steps you took with

Michael to work on speech therapy.

A Yes.

Q And you essentially I believe made the

representation that you worked with him on the worksheets, but

didn't just sit him in front of the worksheet.

A I didn't show him the worksheet.  I worked on the

sounds and letters and words that were on the worksheet.  Yes. 

Q Did you tell Dr. Paglini that that's what you did?  

A Yes, I did.

Q Have you read Dr. Paglini's report?

A Briefly, yes.

Q Do you believe he accurately conveyed what you told

him about speech therapy?

A No.

Q As far as putting Michael back in speech therapy, do

you recall that portion of your testimony?
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A Yes.

Q And in essence, you say that you were cut out of

getting him back into speech therapy.

A Meaning what?

Q That you testified yesterday that I did not consult

with you I think was the phrase.

A Beforehand?

Q Correct.

A Correct.  I had asked for somewhere more neutral. 

And you took it upon yourself to once again choose where to

go.

Q Do you believe that speech therapies -- that you can

walk in?

A No, and that's why I said I would like to get him

enrolled in CCSD program when I did.

Q Did you find a more neutral place and suggest it?  

A No, I was researching them.

Q You would agree that getting Michael back in speech

therapy as quickly as possible is important?

A Not as quickly as possible.  I was told that it

would be all right to figure some other things out.

Q Who told you that?

A Margo (ph), the speech therapist.

Q And so if the speech therapy discharge note didn't
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have that message in there, how would you react?

A Well, I had a personal connection with the speech

therapist and maybe when she's telling me things as

mother-to-mother, woman-to-woman, as I'm going through a hard

time, my husband just left me and she's telling me you can -- 

you know, this is okay for right now.  Let's work on getting

him in this, look through CCSD and get him enrolled when he

goes into school.

Q What's your understanding of Michael's speech level

at the time you exited him from speech therapy?

A That he had progressed well and with the fact that I

was working with him the way that I was, that we would be okay

until I could enroll him in a CCSD program.

Q Did he have a speech delay?

A Yes, he did.

Q Do you recall how severe the speech delay was?

A It was a pretty severe speech delay.

Q Can you quantify that?

A Well, he had a severe tongue tie that went

unrecognized, so he didn't know how to use his tongue.

Q He also had partial hearing, which you're -- are

well aware of.  We had to go to multiple audiologist

appointments, ENT appointments, and I had to fight to get

tubes put in his ears so that all the liquid could drain out
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so that he could properly hear enough to annunciate and

pronounce words.

Q If -- Michael's speech was delayed by about a year. 

A Yes.

Q So at four he had these speech levels of

three-year-old.

A I can't say yes or no.

Q Well, he had a year speech delay.

A I'm not a doctor.  I can't say.

Q You just agreed he had year speech delay.

A About a year speech delay, but I can't go into

anything more than my knowledge as a mother.

Q And I'm not trying to badger this point, but -- 

THE COURT:  Yes, you are.

THE PLAINTIFF:  I'm -- I'm trying to get a

concession.

THE COURT:  The -- the concession is as a mother,

that's the only experience she can talk about and you're

trying to get her to testify to something medical.  She's not

a doctor.  She's -- 

Q Did -- 

THE COURT:  -- not a speech therapist either. 

THE PLAINTIFF:  I -- I can rephrase.

Q Did Margo ever give you an understanding of what a
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year speech delay was?

A No, she never put it that way as a year speech

delay.

Q Who put it as a year speech delay then?

A You did.

Q Then why did you agree with it?

A Because it was about a year that he was not talking

and instead we did sign language.

Q You testified yesterday that you found out Michael

had a new pediatrician based on him coming home to tell you?

A Yes, where his pediatrician was and who it was.

Q So he told you where it was?

A Not me directly, but yes.

Q And I think you testified that your mother took

Michael to speech therapy?

A She did.

Q Do you have a receipt for that?

A She does somewhere.  Yes.

Q And did you submit it pursuant  to the 30/30 rule

for reimbursement?

A No, my mom said that it was her treat.

Q I'd like to talk about New Year's and your

understanding of the New Year's holiday.

THE PLAINTIFF:  I don't know if the Court wanted to
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follow along.

THE COURT:  The problem is is I can't even

understand what that meant.  If the Court can't understand it,

I can see how a layman could not understand it either. 

Telling her to read it without discussing it was -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  I -- 

THE COURT:  -- not good.

THE PLAINTIFF:  I think -- 

THE COURT:  You don't want to -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  I -- 

THE COURT:  -- badger her on it.

THE PLAINTIFF:  I think we're assuming that that's a

fact -- 

THE COURT:  We --  

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- that's true.

THE COURT:  -- don't want to harass her on something

that even the Court cannot understand.  I read it into the

record yesterday because it was extremely confusing.

MS. CRAMER:  And the fact remains that Dad kept the

kids for two years in a row.

THE COURT:  I'm not -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  And on -- 

THE COURT:  -- going -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- once -- 
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THE COURT:  I'm not going to go there.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Counsel's -- 

THE COURT:  I'm -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- testifying. 

THE COURT:  -- just saying -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  The facts -- 

THE COURT:  I -- I know. 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- don't support that and I'd like

to impeach on this point.  I'm -- I'm sorry.  There's certain

things that are just -- we're taking the representations of

Counsel and uncross examined testimony as a fact and then

we're acting on them.  

THE COURT:  No, no, no, no.  No, no, no, no.  I'm

just saying I read it.  You can ask her questions about it,

but don't badger her about it.  Okay?

THE PLAINTIFF:  Understood. 

THE COURT:  Okay.

BY THE PLAINTIFF: 

Q On December 31st of 2019 at 2:39 p.m., you said you

don't get to keep them away from me like this.

A Okay.

Q Is that a yes?

A Probably.

Q And my response was, read the order.  It clearly
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states that it's defined as beginning on December 31st.  You

can pick them up Friday at 6:00 from my house.

A And then what was -- what happened -- 

Q That's -- 

A -- next?  Let's finish reading this. 

Q I'm asking the question.  I'll get to it.

A Okay.  I could have possibly -- you -- 

Q Then -- 

A -- could have possibly said that.  I -- 

Q And -- 

A -- don't recall exactly.

Q You responded with and I get them January 1st at

10:00 a.m.

A Okay.

Q So you had an understanding of how New Year's

functioned.

A Okay.

Q And I didn't just say read the order.

A Yes, I do believe you still kept the children from

me.

Q When you say kept the children from me, is it your

position that you were entitled to the children for the New

Year's holiday going from December 31st of 2019 to January 1st

of 2020?
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A Isn't that what you just said?

Q I'm -- I'm asking you what -- 

A I know and I'm asking for clarification because now

you're confusing me with all these different things and I

can't keep it straight.

THE COURT:  I -- I think he's saying you were

supposed to have gotten them at 10:00 a.m. by your own words. 

You said so I get them at 10:00 a.m. Friday -- I think Friday

is what you said on the 1st.

A I could have, yes.

MS. CRAMER:  And the 1st was not Friday.  And -- 

THE COURT:  But I -- I may have thought Friday there

for some reason, but -- 

MS. CRAMER:  No, he said Friday.

THE PLAINTIFF:  I -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- said that she can pick them up

Friday at 6:00 from my house.

MS. CRAMER:  Yeah, December of 2019.  Friday was

January 3rd.

THE COURT:  Okay.

THE PLAINTIFF:  And here's the problem.

MS. CRAMER:  That's -- 

THE COURT:  Let me pull -- let -- let me -- let --
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let me pull.  I'm going to pull it back up.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Okay.

THE COURT:  Okay.  I want to -- I want to be able to

-- I -- I think I need to look at it because it was confusing. 

THE PLAINTIFF:  Well, the -- 

THE COURT:  So -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- the problem is is that the New

Year's holiday does not have two parts.  And that's where the

confusion stems from on her part is that she believed it was

like Christmas with a Christmas Eve -- 

THE COURT:  Parts. 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- and Christmas day, but it's -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.  

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- not.  And so my message is

relaying the fact that there is no at -- 

THE COURT:  Then why could -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- 10:00 a.m. -- 

THE COURT:  -- you have not -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- is the second part. 

THE COURT:  -- just said that this does not have two

parts?  I get them for New Year's this year, next year will be

your turn?

THE PLAINTIFF:  I -- I can keep going with my

responses -- 
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THE COURT:  Okay.  

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- here, because -- 

THE COURT:  Go ahead.

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- she said and I get them January

1st at 10:00 a.m.  My response first then why would you say

that you get them at 10:00 a.m.  today?  Secondly, no, you

don't.  It says nothing like that.  You get them on your

normal scheduled time which is Friday at 6:00.  Her response,

you cannot keep them from me.  My response, I'm not keeping

them from you.  I'm following the holiday schedule.  You're

the only one that keeps the children when it's not your time. 

I don't play those games because I don't play with the kids'

emotions or use them as pawns.  

I -- I recognize and I'm reading the complete quote

for the sake of the record.  And then it keeps going. I will

be there.  She said I will be there 10:00 a.m. and I responded

with that's not how it works. When the holiday schedule's

over, it resumes the normal schedule.  This is not the week

when you get them Friday to -- or Wednesday to Friday.  That's

next week.

THE COURT:  This is still just so screwy.

BY THE PLAINTIFF: 

Q The point being, Chalese, is that I didn't just tell

you to read the order and ignore you.
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A Is that a question?

Q Yes.

A Point being you didn't just tell me and ignore me,

how is that a question?  I don't understand.

 Q Ma'am, you've answered leading questions like that

this entire time.  I'm not trying to -- 

MS. CRAMER:  Okay.  

Q -- make this difficult -- 

MS. CRAMER:  Okay.  

Q -- and it's taking long.

MS. CRAMER:  Your Honor, I object. 

THE COURT:  What -- what he -- no, he's actually

making a very deal.  Her testimony was that his only response

was read the order.

MS. CRAMER:  No.

THE COURT:  When he is reading from what the true

conversation was.

MS. CRAMER:  No, Your Honor, you -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah, that -- 

MS. CRAMER:  He is reading from 2019.

THE COURT:  Yeah.

MS. CRAMER:  He -- this has happened three years in

a row apparently because he kept them 2020 and he kept them

New Year's Eve on 2021.
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THE PLAINTIFF:  Your Honor, we'll get to -- 

MS. CRAMER:  And he has told her -- 

THE COURT:  Let's -- let's let him get to that,

because right now he's only on 2019.  But I do think her

testimony was only on 2020 and 2021.

MS. CRAMER:  Yes.  

THE COURT:  I think those were the only two years

she was talking about.

MS. CRAMER:  Well, I'm -- I'm -- 

THE COURT:  So we need to move -- 

MS. CRAMER:  Yes, because -- 

THE COURT:  -- to those two years.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Sure.  Let's get to 2020.  I'll --

I'll -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah.  

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- shortcut this because there's

inaccurate representations being made.

THE COURT:  Yeah, I -- I do believe that the primary

stuff was 2020 and 2021, so -- 

MS. CRAMER:  I didn't even know that he had withheld

all three years in a row. 

THE PLAINTIFF:  I -- I don't know.

MR. GOODWIN:  He didn't withhold -- 

THE COURT:  He -- 
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MR. GOODWIN:  -- all -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  It's -- 

MR. GOODWIN:  -- three years. 

THE COURT:  Hold on.  

THE PLAINTIFF:  It's -- it's -- 

THE COURT:  Hold on, hold on, hold on.  He did not

withhold them because it was his time.  You can't say he

withheld them when the -- when this does not break it up into

two parts.

MS. CRAMER:  No, I understand it doesn't break them

up into two parts.  I don't -- 

THE COURT:  So he did not withhold because odd years

were Dad's.

MS. CRAMER:  What -- and I also acknowledge that

that -- that order that was issued about the holiday is

virtually un -- unreadable.  You can't understand it.

THE COURT:  Yeah.  Well -- well, because they never

defined if we were going to look -- what, are we going to

define it by New Year's Day or are we going to define it -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  The -- 

THE COURT:  -- by New Year's Eve?

THE PLAINTIFF:  The -- 

MS. CRAMER:  Exactly.

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- order -- 
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THE COURT:  There is nothing in here that stated how

you were going to define it, so it's not even enforceable.  

THE PLAINTIFF:  Respectfully, I -- I think it is

enforceable.  I think it's -- 

THE COURT:  How?

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- confusing, but clear.

THE COURT:  Where does it tell me what -- what year

Mom was supposed to get -- get these kids?  Because one year

you could have said no.  The -- the -- you know, we're in

2019.  It's an odd year, so it's mine.  And then the next

year, no, January -- Jan -- January 1st is an odd year.  So

it's mine.

MR. GOODWIN:  Your -- Your Honor, may I -- 

THE COURT:   So you could have done it the same way

every single time.  So no, that portion is un -- the -- it's

-- it's unenforceable.  But it's going to be changed because

we are now going to take Christmas week, we're going to take

the winter break and it's going to be equally divided between

the two.

THE PLAINTIFF:  And -- and that -- 

THE COURT:   And it's going to be defined by the

Christmas -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  And -- 

THE COURT:  -- year.
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THE PLAINTIFF:  And I understand.  I just -- for --

for the sake of -- of clarifying my argument, the -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah.

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- New Year's holiday reads the

parents agree that the New Year's holiday shall be defined as

beginning on December 31st at -- 

THE COURT:  Correct.

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- 10:00 a.m., concluding January

1st.  The New Year's holiday shall be alternated on a yearly

basis with the children residing with the father in odd

numbered years and with the mother -- 

THE COURT:  Correct.

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- in even numbered years.  Odd and

even numbered years should be defined as -- as determined

whether the holiday is defined as beginning on New Year's Eve

or New Year's Day.

THE COURT:  We -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  The preceding definition about the

parents agreed that -- 

THE COURT:  But the -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- it's defined as beginning -- 

THE COURT:  -- problem is is that it wasn't defined

on -- if you were looking at New Year's Eve or New Year's Day.

So somebody who was -- who -- who is trained to talk could
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confuse somebody.

THE PLAINTIFF:  And -- and I will get to -- 

THE COURT:  You don't want to push this point

because you're trained to talk and you could have convinced

her every single year it was your time.  Don't go there. 

Don't go there because she was the one who's misunderstanding. 

Unless you've got other text messages that say hey, are you

picking the kids up today?  It's your year.  It's your

holiday.  Did you do it in 2020?

THE PLAINTIFF:  And no, I -- I can proffer for the

Court in 2020 she did not come pick up.  And then the way -- 

THE COURT:  Why?  Did you ask her why are you not

coming and picking up the children on your holiday?

THE PLAINTIFF:  I did not, because the pattern to

that point had been just not -- 

THE COURT:  But it hasn't.

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- show up.  And so -- 

THE COURT:  Because it's confusing.

THE PLAINTIFF:  I -- I can -- 

THE COURT:  It's -- you know, it's just best for us

to move on from that point.  I recognize it's confusing.  It's

not going against you.  It's not going for you.  Okay.  I

promise you that, because it is confusing.

THE PLAINTIFF:  I just -- for the sake -- I -- I
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just want to add one last thing. 

THE COURT:  You -- we have got one hour left. 

You're -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  I do. 

THE COURT:  -- spending how much time on something

that none -- none of us agree on.  For -- I -- and just how

it's defined.  I don't find -- I will not find that you

withheld the children on New Year's.  Okay.  I will not find

that because it's not properly defined. 

BY THE PLAINTIFF: 

Q My -- My last question on this point, just to be

very quick, is that on December 1st, 2021 at 10:24 a.m., I

messaged you and said no, it was your New Year's and you never

showed up.  I had New Years last year.  Remember?

A No, because I -- I remember briefly the

conversation, but the year before I was -- it -- it was -- 

everything was confusing.

Q So you don't recall receiving that message from me

on January 1st, 2021 at 10:24 a.m. and that you viewed that

message at 10:32 a.m.?

A No, you're -- sorry, I'm -- 

MS. CRAMER:  Your Honor -- 

A -- sorry, I don't -- 

THE COURT:  Well, hold on. 
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A -- remember that exact -- 

THE COURT:  Hold on.  Hold on.  No, my question is

why would you wait until after the fact and not -- not, you

know, at 10:24 a.m. December 31st why are you not here to pick

up your children?  This is your year.  Instead, you did not

pick up your children on your holiday.

MS. CRAMER:  And -- and Your Honor, I want to object

to this because this is the problem with a -- an attorney who

wants to represent himself.  He is -- he is both testifying -- 

THE COURT:  Suck it up.

MS. CRAMER:  -- and -- and badgering her.

THE COURT:  Becau -- suck it up, because we have pro

per litigants doing it all the time.

MS. CRAMER:  Yes.

THE PLAINTIFF:  And he's pro per.  I'm not going   

to -- 

MS. CRAMER:  But he -- 

THE COURT:  -- limit him anymore -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  Well, it's -- 

THE COURT:  -- than I would any -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- it's also -- 

THE COURT:  -- other pro per.

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- proper impeachment evidence.  I 

do -- 
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THE COURT:  Correct.  

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- this all the time in my criminal. 

This is not improper in any way, shape, or form.

THE COURT:  Yeah, it is not improper.

MS. CRAMER:  It's unseemly.

THE PLAINTIFF:  And that's not -- 

THE COURT:  Now -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- an objection.

THE COURT:  -- you know, that's -- you know, it's -- 

MS. CRAMER:  In light of his -- 

THE COURT:  It's his right.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Under the Rules of Evidence, it's

proper impeachment based on a past statement and it's -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah.  

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- it's --

THE COURT:  You know, the statements are there.  It

is what it is.  The timing -- the timing I feel is weird on

when you sent the message.

THE PLAINTIFF:  There's conversation -- 

THE COURT:  But -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- preceding -- 

THE COURT:  -- you know -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- that, but I -- 

THE COURT:  But there's -- 
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THE PLAINTIFF:  -- didn't want to -- 

THE COURT:  -- conversa -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- beat the horse.

THE COURT:  I -- I see where you're going.  We are

-- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  I know you're not going to hold it

against.  I just -- 

THE COURT:  I'm not going to hold it against you.  

So let's just -- you know, you don't always have to have the

last word.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Understood.

BY THE PLAINTIFF: 

Q Chalese, you testified about not taking vacation

time with the children?

A Yes.  

Q Your testimony was that you need to -- I don't want

to put words in your mouth and I'm going to paraphrase, but I

believe your rationale for not taking vacation time with the

children was that you're on a tight budget.

A Yes.

Q And that you have to work as much as possible.

  A Yes.

Q And your typical days off are Saturdays and Sundays.

A Yes.
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Q And so you under the old primary schedule had every

other weekend with the children?

A Yes.

Q So in theory, nothing prevented you from taking the

weekends.  You didn't have them as vacation with kids because

you weren't working.

A I did pick up Saturdays on those days.

Q So you did that every single weekend?

A No, not every single weekend.

Q But there were weekends you could have done that.  

THE WITNESS:  Well, I also had a baby in the NICU

and that took time and sometimes I would go and spend the day

with my brand new preemie baby.

Q You said you were sent away from months at a time?  

A Yes.

Q When was that?

A Throughout our whole relationship.

Q Do you have a sister named Alyssa (ph)?

A Yes, I do.

Q And does she live in Colorado Springs?

A No, she does not.

Q Did she live in Colorado Springs?

A At one point, yes.

Q And did you go visit her?
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A Multiple times, yes.

Q Did she have children?

A Yes.

Q Did you visit her to assist her with her children?

A At one point, yes, I did, while she had her second

baby, I got to be there.

Q So do you consider that being sent away to go there?

A Not that instance.  No.

Q You said that you were sent away to your

grandmother's ranch.

A Yes.

Q And you obviously had grandparents there.

A At -- at that time, yes.

Q And at that time you had a grandfather and a

grandmother.

A Yes.

Q And you went there to help them as well.

A I helped them while I was there.  Yes.

Q Okay.  So would this once again be a time that I

sent you away or that you went to go help them?

A It's a time that you sent me away and while I was

there I was helping out.

Q So -- strike that.  You said something about

Jessie's (ph) birthday and wanting to swap time?
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A Yes.

Q Which birthday was that?

A I'm not sure which year it was.

Q Okay.  And if I were to proffer to you that I don't

see in the AppClose messages at least that are discoverable

anything about Jesse's birthday, your reaction to that would

be -- 

A Maybe when the instance that I'm talking about was

after discovery was closed.

Q Okay, so discovery closed -- when's Jesse's

birthday?

A It's April 2nd.

Q Okay.  So discovery closed as of April 11th.  So --

and it is not April of 2022 yet, right?

A Right.

Q So you would expect to see a message about that in

AppClose?

A If I were the one that had messaged you, yes, but at

this particular time, I do believe I told Michael that it was

your time and he asked to call you and see if he could stay

for Jessie's birthday and then you could have one of my days.

Q So you had Michael call to ask me if I would agree

to a custody modification.

A I told him no and he asked if he could call and ask
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you.

Q And -- and you didn't insist on telling him no, he

couldn't do it, and then messaging me privately?

A I -- my son is asking to call his dad and ask a

question.  I'm not going to deprive him of that.

Q So if Michael asked you to call me to find out why

he couldn't be with you equal time, you'd let him do that?

A I think if our son is confused and wants to talk to

you, maybe you can explain it better to him.  Then yes, I

would absolutely let him call you.

Q You're -- 

THE COURT:  Just -- just to be sure, are you asking

to switch days so that the children could equally in --

involved in possible step siblings' activities?  It's not a

change in -- it's not a modification in custody.  It's just

trying to be a cooperative parent.

THE PLAINTIFF:  I'm -- I'm -- I don't want to draw

an objection from -- I -- I -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Your -- your point is well taken.   

I --

THE COURT:  Okay.

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- do have a response, but I'm -- 

THE COURT:  I do also want to point out that you had
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already told me when I asked the question that you probably

would not have allowed it even if she did ask.  So -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  Correct.

THE COURT:  -- you know -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  No.  

THE COURT:  So you really don't need to go in there. 

You yourself gave the answer.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Right?  The Court's brief

indulgence.  I know we're pressed for time.  Can we take a

five minute recess?  I drank too much -- 

THE COURT:  Yes we -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- water -- 

THE COURT:  -- can.

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- this morning.

THE COURT:  Yes we can, because I was sitting  

there -- 

(COURT RECESSED AT 11:06 AND RESUMED AT 11:19) 

THE COURT:  All right.  We are back on the record.

THE PLAINTIFF:  May I resume, Your Honor?

THE COURT:  Yes, please.

BY THE PLAINTIFF: 

Q On September 13th, 2019, I notified you about some

vacation time I was going to take in December.

A That sounds about right.
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Q And then the day before that vacation time on

December 6th, I brought it up again.

A You did.

Q Do you recall your response to that? 

A Briefly, but not enough to quote it.

Q I said, just a reminder, I would be there tomorrow

at 3:00 to pick up the kids as mentioned previously.  Your

response was we have plans.

A Okay.

Q Does that comport with what you recall? 

A It could. 

Q And then you also said I haven't had them in two

weeks, I get them for two days, let me have time with my

children for fuck's sake.

A Yes.

Q And I also said you've known about this for months. 

I told you the first time I brought up Christmas Eve to you.  

A Yes.

Q And ultimately on December 7th, did you allow me to

pick up the kids?

A I believe you picked the -- I -- I don't believe --

I don't recall.  I don't remember what day.

Q Okay.  Did I -- the date with Josh and the truck,

did I pick up the kids that day?
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A I don't believe so.

Q Did you ultimately bring the kids over the next day?

A Yes, I did.

Q And you did that early because you said that you had

rodeo tickets?

A That's what I told you, yes.

Q Do you recall a conversation that was persistent

throughout the fall of 2019 in an attempt to essentially set

Christmas up so that I always had Christmas Eve and you always

had Christmas Day?

A I remember you bringing that up.  Yes.

Q Did you ever agree to that?

A I'm not sure.  I don't remember.

THE COURT:  I need to interject.  Any negotiations

is not admissible.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Well, I understood.

THE COURT:  Would that -- would be negotiations.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Understood.

THE COURT:  Okay.  So -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  And -- and it was -- I -- 

THE COURT:  I understand the frustrations, but you

know -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  It's -- it's not even a -- 

THE COURT:  -- you can ask, but it's not necessarily

                                                                                                                                                                                  

  D-19-582245-D   SOLINGER   03/03/22   TRANSCRIPT  (SEALED)

VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC  (520) 303-7356

     

    63

004732



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

something that -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  Well, and Your Honor has already

made clear the holiday schedule's going to be different.  It's

-- 

THE COURT:  Yes.  

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- more about ability to -- I guess

it's -- I -- I didn't -- that is a good point.  Thank you for

bringing that up because I did not see it that way.  I saw it

-- 

THE COURT:  Okay.

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- a different way.  So thank you. 

BY THE PLAINTIFF: 

Q With Marie's teeth, and I know we talked about this

earlier, but I want to be very specific about it, she had

bacteria on her teeth.

A In her gums.

Q Okay.  And it caused her to have cavities on her

teeth.

A Caused her teeth to come in decayed.

Q Okay.  And the dentist put a black solution on them,

silver something, that sealed them and stopped the decay? 

A Yes.

Q And that was done to try to preserve them?

A Yes.
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Q And at some point, In February of 2019, you wanted

to have a procedure done to remove the black?

A I did not want it to be done.  It was suggested.  

Q Okay.  Was that procedure cosmetic at that time or

medically necessary?

A I'm not a doctor.

Q Okay.  

A I was going off the doctor's recommendations.

Q And do you recall what the procedure -- strike that. 

The procedure to remove that involved putting Marie under

general anesthesia.

A Yes.

Q And you are aware of the risks of somebody younger

than two going under general anesthesia?

A I'm aware that the anesthesiologist and multiple

doctors talked to me about the risks and the benefits and I

believe that ultimately I made the right decision.

Q That was the question.  The question was you are

aware of the risks?

A Yes.  I was made aware of the risks.

Q And your position is is that it was or it was not a

cosmetic procedure?

A It was recommended by the dentist, so that's what I

was going off of whether I consider it cosmetic or not.  I
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can't answer that.

Q Did Dr. Hogan (ph) tell you it was medically

necessary?

A No, not medically necessary.

Q At some point, did it become medically necessary?  

A Yes.

Q Was Marie then scheduled for -- strike that.  Did

you schedule Marie's first surgery date after talking to Dr.

Hogan when it was not medically necessary?

A I scheduled the first surgery date with Dr. Hogan

because that's what she had suggested and I took the first

date available.  Yes.  

Q Did you talk to me before you scheduled it?

A I let you know soon after.  I said she only has a

couple appointments.  I took the soonest available.  Here's

what it is.  Does that work with your schedule.

Q So you saw that in your mind the child had a need

and you took action to accommodate that?

A Yes.  At the time I was the sole caregiver for the

children.

Q At the time.  This was in April of 2019?

A Yes.

Q This would have been --

A Where I was still -- 
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Q This would have -- 

A -- taking -- 

Q -- been -- 

A -- the children.

Q This would have been after the early case

conference?

A Okay.

Q Yes?

A Possibly.

Q You don't -- 

A I don't remember.

Q You don't recall taking part in an early case

conference?

A I remember taking part in the early case conference,

yes.  I do not recall when it was.

Q Do you recall being in court in March of 2019?

A There was a good possibility, yes.

Q So this would have been after that first court date.

A Sure.

Q And you scheduled that first surgery?  Yes?

A Yes.

Q And then I thought it was not medically necessary

and that it was cosmetic and so I canceled it.

A You did.
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Q And then there became a time when that procedure

became medically necessary.

A It did. 

Q And once it became medically necessary, then we

rescheduled.

THE COURT:  Let me ask, how -- how long -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  How -- 

THE COURT:  -- between the April date which was

scheduled the -- to -- when did she actually have the surgery?

THE PLAINTIFF:  She ended up having it in May, I

believe, because what happened was -- 

THE COURT:  So in one month when it was suggested,

you didn't want it until it became an emergency.

THE PLAINTIFF:  No.  

THE COURT:  Is that -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  That -- that's not accurate.  What

happened is -- I don't want to testify and I don't want to

draw an -- 

THE COURT:  I -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- objection. 

THE COURT:  I -- I realize of -- you know -- I'm --

I'm just asking -- so, you know, did -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  I will proffer this. 

THE COURT:  Yeah, and -- and you're not the one on
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the witness stand.  I -- I apologize.  Go ahead.

THE PLAINTIFF:  No.  I mean, I -- would Your Honor 

like me to answer?  Because I -- I'm not -- I -- I don't know

that I can go through it with her questioning. 

THE COURT:  Yeah.

THE PLAINTIFF:  And so -- 

THE COURT:  My -- my question is did you bother to

call the doctor up and talk to the doctor yourself?  

THE PLAINTIFF:  Absolutely.  I spoke to Dr. Hogan. 

THE COURT:  Okay.

THE PLAINTIFF:  She said it was cosmetic and not

necessary at all.  What had happened was about a month or so

later the teeth just started to decay.

THE COURT:  Okay.

THE PLAINTIFF:  And so this surgery was scheduled as

a normal surgery I want to say in June, possibly.  But then it

became -- no, that -- that's -- I -- I don't want to testify

to something --

THE COURT:  That's fine.  That's fine.  I just --

you know, I'm -- I'm trying to get the general lay -- I mean,

if it was six months later, you know, one -- 30 -- 30 days

later, you cleared it up.  I appreciate it.

BY THE PLAINTIFF: 

Q First surgery that you scheduled on your own was
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canceled because it was not medically necessary.

A You canceled.

MS. CRAMER:  Objection.  Yeah, objection.  That's

not -- that misstates testimony.

THE PLAINTIFF:  I didn't say that she -- 

MS. CRAMER:  That assumes -- 

THE COURT:  It was just canceled -- 

MS. CRAMER:  It's -- 

THE COURT:  -- period.

MS. CRAMER:  Yes, it was canceled.  And if he'd

stopped there, I wouldn't have objected.  But he -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah.  

MS. CRAMER:  -- couldn't stop there.

THE COURT:  Yeah.

BY THE PLAINTIFF: 

Q At some point after that first scheduled surgery

date, was a second surgery scheduled?

A Yes.

Q And at that time, did you have Marie?

A No.

Q So, sorry, let me rephrase.  In the time leading up

to that second scheduled surgery, did you have Marie?

A No, I did not.

Q Okay.  So your testimony is that you didn't take her
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to the dentist at all leading up to that second surgery?

A No.

Q And they did not give you any kind of paperwork

related to that surgery?

A No, they did not.  I did not have the children.

THE PLAINTIFF:  The Court's indulgence while I  find

something.

Q Ultimately, did she have surgery on that second date

that surgery was scheduled?

A Yes.

Q She had on that second time?  So there was no time

that surgery was canceled because Marie even attend a pre-op

appointment.

A You just said the second time surgery was -- 

Q Okay, so we had -- 

A -- scheduled. 

Q -- the first time that surgery was scheduled and

that was canceled.

A That you canceled.  Yes.

Q That was canceled.

A Yes.

Q Then there was a second surgery date.

A Okay.

Q I'm asking you.
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A Yes, there was a second surgery date.

Q And did Marie have surgery on that second surgery

date?

A I believe so.

Q So there was no third date that was scheduled?

A I -- I don't recall.  I know that she had surgery at

-- the first one got canceled.  I'm not sure what happened in

between.  They were with you for those two weeks.

Q They were -- so there was never a time that Marie

did not have a scheduled surgery because she didn't attend a

mandatory pre-op through a pediatrician?

A Not that I was aware of, no.

Q Not that you are aware of.

A Correct.  

MS. CRAMER:  Are we going to keep -- objection asked

and answered. 

THE COURT:  Sustained.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Court's indulgence.

THE COURT:  Yes, sir.

THE PLAINTIFF:  I apologize, Your Honor.  This is -- 

THE COURT:  No, that's not you.  I'm getting

frustrated with my -- not being able to see my cursor.

THE WITNESS:  Oh, your cursor.  I can turn this way

though if you'd like.  You can look at me instead of your
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cursor.

THE COURT:  Yeah, sometimes I have to see my cursor

though.

THE WITNESS:  (Indiscernible). 

THE COURT:  While, he's indulging, didn't you say

earlier that when the child was taken in, the doctor just

barely had to touch her gums and puss would come out?

THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT:  Okay.  I was pretty sure that's what you

had testified to.  See, even you're having a hard time finding

it.

THE PLAINTIFF:  I am.  The issue is is that it's not

a searchable PDF like the AppClose is.  It's screenshots of

text messages.  And so I'm trying to locate a particular one.

(PAUSE) 

THE PLAINTIFF:  I'd ask the Defense Counsel not

answer requests of the witness, as well; she's on the stand,

please.

THE COURT:  What was that, sir?

THE PLAINTIFF:  I'd ask the Defense Counsel not

whisper and/or communicate with her client while she's on the

stand. 

THE COURT:  I've actually -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  I -- I -- 
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THE COURT:  -- was seeing her -- watching her what's

on her screen.

MS. CRAMER:  What are you talking about?

THE PLAINTIFF:  I heard whispering and I -- I guess

incorrectly -- 

THE COURT:  It may have been -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- while looking -- 

THE COURT:  -- me -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- down assumed.

THE COURT:  -- that you heard -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  It possibly could have.

THE COURT:  -- cussing the books.

MS. CRAMER:  I didn't say a word, Your Honor, for

the record.  I didn't say a word.

THE COURT:  I -- I know.  I -- because I made a

comment and I looked up and you were watching your screen  

and -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  If -- 

THE COURT:  -- I'm the one who made the comment.

THE PLAINTIFF:  If I was incorrect, I apologize.

(PAUSE) 

(COUNSEL AND CLIENT CONFER BRIEFLY) 

THE PLAINTIFF:  I -- I appreciate the indulgence,

Your Honor.  May I resume?
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THE COURT:  Yes, please.

BY THE PLAINTIFF: 

Q Have you used any marijuana today? 

A No.  

Q And did you use any yesterday?

A No.

Q When was the last time you used marijuana?

A I couldn't tell you. 

Q More than 30 days ago?  

A Yes.

Q So if you were to take a test, it would be clean?

THE COURT:  I'm -- 

A Yes.  

THE COURT:  -- not going to -- I'm not going to

order any more tests.

THE PLAINTIFF:  I understand.  I guess the problem

is Your Honor has ordered no marijuana with children in the

house, no smoking.  And so if that's an order that's for

posterity's sake, then I -- I understand.  But I just --

THE COURT:  I mean, I under -- I understand where

you're -- where you're going, but there's going to be --

there's going to be a lot of controlling in Mom's life that's

about to get lifted.

THE PLAINTIFF:  I understand the Court's position. 
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I'm -- I'm -- 

BY THE PLAINTIFF: 

Q Do you recall a conversation on June 5th, 2019 at

12:21 p.m. where you said I just called the dentist, they have

a cancellation, and I can get her in June 12th if that works

for you?

A That sounds about right.

Q You then said that's next week?

A Okay.

Q And then at 1:22 p.m. you said okay, well, I'm

booking it?

A Yes.

Q So that was again seeing a child with a need and

taking action for the child?

A As I'm letting you know, yes.

THE PLAINTIFF:  The Court's indulgence.  Your Honor,

I pass the witness.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. CRAMER: 

Q All right.  On your health insurance when he got

hired by the AG's Office, what did he tell you you could do

with your health insurance?

THE PLAINTIFF:  Objection, outside the scope.  This

could have been asked on direct.
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MS. CRAMER:  And this is cross and direct.  We

agreed to combine them.

THE PLAINTIFF:  But she could have asked on her

direct because -- 

MS. CRAMER:  Okay.  

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- it was her witness.

MS. CRAMER:  We agreed to combine them.

BY MS. CRAMER: 

Q Anyway, what did he -- 

THE COURT:  I'll just ask it, so you might as well

let her answer it or I'm going to ask it.  What did he tell

you? 

Q What did he tell you you could do about your health

insurance when he got hired at the AG'S Office?

A That I could take over the private health insurance

and pay for it myself.

Q Okay.  The house on Curtsen (ph), there was a

problem buying that house, correct?

A Correct.

Q And what was that problem? 

A Because I used my portion of the marital funds from

the marital home, Adam, and maybe -- I -- I don't want to

misstate because I'm not, you know, an attorney or anything

like that, but Adam thought that he was entitled to part of it

                                                                                                                                                                                  

  D-19-582245-D   SOLINGER   03/03/22   TRANSCRIPT  (SEALED)

VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC  (520) 303-7356

     

    77

004746



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

and we had to get a quitclaim signed by him.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Objection.  Completely misstates the

record.  And this has been briefed ad nauseam.  I don't   

know -- 

THE COURT:  I -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- the point getting into it.

THE COURT:  Yeah, skip on over that.  He's -- you

know, he -- he signed a quitclaim deed, didn't he?

THE WITNESS:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Okay.  All right.  Then -- that -- and

that gave up his community property rights to it.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Yeah, and -- and -- 

MS. CRAMER:  Okay.  Your Honor, I think that's all I

wanted to follow up on.  And does the Court have anything else

you would like me to explore or do you want to ask her direct? 

THE COURT:  I am going to ask her some questions.

VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION

BY THE COURT: 

Q Why did you not go to parent teacher meetings?

  A They were either scheduled while I was at work and

couldn't get off.

Q And why did you not contact the school and try to

schedule your own?

A Because I was given by Adam the times that were
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available and that he was going.

Q And you never bothered to contact the teacher

yourself outside of that stuff to have your own meetings?

A Up until this last couple weeks, I was not on any

list to contact any teachers no matter how much I tried.  So I

had to go in and sit down in the office and actually fill out

paperwork because I was not included in any of that.

Q Why did you not take the order before these last

couple of weeks to show that you had legal rights still?

A It just -- it was something that honestly I felt had

he been with people that were neglecting him and not loving

him, it would have been different.  I couldn't get off of work

and I couldn't make it this year.  He did have parents go and

I was okay with that.

Q Okay.  All right.  Why did you not go to any of the

speech therapy?

A They were scheduled on Adam's time and once again

while I was in work.

Q But A -- Adam -- Adam stated that he had -- he

reached out to you so that you could take -- take the children

or your son during your time.  Why did you not take him up on

that?

A I am a very strict money schedule.  I have to work

the hours that I work, otherwise I cannot get anything paid.
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Q Okay. 

A And it hurts me that I can't do that to spend time

with my children, but at this time, having a roof over their

head is extremely -- 

Q But -- 

A -- important.

Q -- wasn't this also during a period of time in which

you were getting some spousal support?

A Yes.  And I still have bills and I -- I live on the

east side and I work in Silverado Ranch and drive a truck, so

that takes a lot.

Q Okay.   

A I'm also -- I don't just stay at that one salon. 

They send me to other salons as well.  I'm a manager, so I

have to go and do other things.

Q Okay.  All right.

MS. CRAMER:  And -- and Your Honor, I do want to

point out, she did testify that when she noticed a vacation

they did -- she did take him -- him.  So -- or grandma did.

THE COURT:  Grandma took him.

MS. CRAMER:  So yeah.

THE COURT:  Okay.  All right.  And -- and I got that

in my notes.

Q But anyway, when the -- could you openly see the
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private investigators when they were outside your home?

A Yes.

Q They weren't kind of hidden and trying -- 

A No.  

Q -- trying to to blend in?

A They would park their car the way that our street is

set up.  it's a lot of street parking -- and they would park

the car across the street pointing my house.  And we would

tell it's them because any time a -- a work van or a truck

would move, they would move their car up.  

Q Okay.  Am I mistaken in the fact that you actually

saw people following you in the grocery store?

A Whether or not -- 

Q Or was it just -- 

A -- that's related -- 

Q -- you thought it was?

A Whether or not that's related, but yes, I have been. 

I've been followed multiple times.

Q All right.  And was it obvious that you were being

followed when you were driving around?

A Yes.

Q They didn't -- they did not try to conceal the fact

they were following you?

A No, and actually in a lot of the videos, I have the
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kids waving to the private investigators.

Q Okay.  All right.  What -- what -- you say you have

a pick up truck.

A Yes.

Q Okay.  Ford?  Chevy?

A GMC. 

Q It's GMC.  What year?

A 2012.

Q 2012.  What's the make, model?  Whatever, model. A

Si -- it's a Sierra -- 

Q It's -- 

A -- 1500. 

Q -- a Sierra.  How many miles does it have on it?  

A 98,000, give it some change.

Q All right.  When did you start taking Xanax?

  A Xanax, I was prescribed at the very beginning of

this location -- litigation.  I got taken off of Xanax and

recently put back on Clonazepam which -- 

Q Okay.  

A -- is a little bit different, but -- 

Q All right.  

A -- kind of the same effect.

Q Were you taking anti-anxiety medications or anything

during -- while -- while you were still living with Mr.
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Solinger?

A The anxiety part wasn't as present.  I had been

diagnosed with postpartum depression after both having all --

all three of my babies.  And so part of the antidepressants

was also a mood stabilizer that would help with anxiety and

things like that.

Q When were you first diagnosed with depression and

anxiety?

A The first time I was diagnosed with depression was

before I had children when I was -- I think it was before Adam

and I even got married.  It was when we first moved back to

Vegas and I didn't -- I couldn't get a job.  I was just having

a hard time and so I was really depressed.  I found a

therapist that I really liked and enjoyed.  I met with her. 

She got me started on medications.  I found a job.  I was able

to get myself out of that and taper off of the medication. 

And then after I had my son it went about seven months where I

felt like I just was insane and then I got diagnosed with

postpartum depression, postpartum anxiety.  

I had, you know, a really traumatic birth and

everything.  They had brought up a lot of PTSD issues from

when I was a child.  And then I eventually was able to, with

the help of my doctors, taper off of that and that was great. 

And then after I had my daughter, I recognized the signs very
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early on that it wasn't baby blues. that I once again had

depression.  So I sought help from the same team that I had

been and I'm still with that same team today.

  Q Okay.  The anxiety -- 

A Yes.  

Q -- when were you first diagnosed with this anxiety? 

A First day --

Q Was it -- 

A -- of diagnos -- 

Q -- after the baby?

A I have mild anxiety coping along with my postpartum

depression.  The anxiety portion didn't come out by itself

until after the separation.

Q Okay.  PTSD -- when Dr. Paglini was sitting there

talking to you about PTSD, what symptoms did you have and

everything, why could you not describe some of the symptoms,

flashbacks, things like that, you know, the things that he

discussed?

A The things that Dr. Paglini discussed?

Q Uh-huh.

A It's -- it's hard.  It puts me in a bad mindset.  

Q Okay.  All right.

A It brings me anxiety.

Q All right.
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A I start to -- 

Q That's okay.  That's okay.  I -- I see the reaction,

so I -- and I understand.  So -- because it was -- well, he

spent a little bit of time on that.  So I just wanted to

clarify that.

THE COURT:  Okay.  All right.  I don't have anything

further.  Did I bring up something that you all want to -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  Absolutely.

THE COURT:  -- discuss with her? Okay.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Very quickly.

RECROSS EXAMINATION 

BY THE PLAINTIFF: 

Q Chalese, on July 1st of 2020.  You said -- July 1st,

2020 at 9:25 a.m., my mom is coming into town, so I'll be

taking vacation time with the kids this month, the 12th

through the 17th, so they can spend time with her.

A Yes.

Q July 14th, 2020, I sent you a message at 5:15. 

Wait, you're not taking Michael to speech therapy.  You viewed

that according to this at 5:15, right?

A Possibly.

Q I followed up at 5:34 and said, question mark,

question mark, question mark.  You viewed that at 5:50.  And

then you responded at 5:50, no, I was given no information
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whatsoever on where it is or time or anything.  Enjoy your

night.  Right?

A That's what I told you.  Yes.

Q Okay.  And then I sent screenshots of the preceding

message that we just went over, right?

A Possibly.

Q Would it refresh your recollection to see a printout

of the AppClose messages that have the Bates number at the top

messages 228 and 233?

A You can just read it.

Q Well, there are screenshots of preceding things that

are on different pages.  I then follow up at 5:53 and say

there's the date, the time, the rece -- the receipts have the

address.  Also, when I told you about it when you requested a

vacation time, why wouldn't you ask?  You saw that at 5:54 and

said nothing.  I then followed up at 6:53 and -- because

unrelated, but just so that the Court doesn't think I'm doing

anything untoward, almost forgot, here's the insurance card

and then I sent a picture of insurance cards because the kids

had updated insurance card.  You testified earlier that that

time your mom came in, she took him to speech therapy.

A Yes.

Q Speech therapy's at 6:00 o'clock?

A Possibly.  So you don't -- 

                                                                                                                                                                                  

  D-19-582245-D   SOLINGER   03/03/22   TRANSCRIPT  (SEALED)

VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC  (520) 303-7356

     

    86

004755



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

A When my mom comes into town, she takes the kids

overnight.

Q She takes them overnight?

A Yes.

Q Okay.  July 1st, 2020 at 1:57, I add on also Michael

has speech therapy that Tuesday during your vacation time at

6:00.

A Okay.

Q Yeah?

A Sure.  I'm sure that's what you said.

Q So did he or did he not go to speech therapy?

A My mother took him to speech therapy. 

Q Then why would you -- when I asked whether Michael

was going to speech therapy say no?

THE PLAINTIFF:  I don't understand the objection or

the -- guffawing about it.  It's a legitimate impeachment

question.  She testified under oath -- 

MS. CRAMER:  It -- it -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- that her mother took him and -- 

MS. CRAMER:  No -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- it's -- 

MS. CRAMER:  -- it's -- it's not because you're

talking about text messages that predate the event.  You sent

her the information.  Just because she didn't follow up with a
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barrage of text messages, which he has just read into the

record that he admits he does, just because she doesn't 

engage -- 

THE COURT:  Stop -- 

MS. CRAMER:  -- in that kind of behavior doesn't -- 

THE COURT:  Tone it down. 

MS. CRAMER:  -- mean he didn't go.

THE COURT:  Tone it down.  Tone it down. 

MS. CRAMER:  I apologize to the Court.

THE COURT:  And if I'm not mistaken -- hold on. 

Didn't that ask are you taking him or is he going?  I don't

remember.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Wait.  You are not taking Michael to

speech therapy.

THE COURT:  You're -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  Question. 

THE COURT:  -- not.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Okay.  

THE PLAINTIFF:  And then --  

THE COURT:  She didn't. 

THE PLAINTIFF:  No, I was given no information

whatsoever on any -- on where is time or anything.  Enjoy your

night.  That message was sent by her at 5:50.  Speech
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therapy's at six o'clock.  If her position is that not only is

she not taking them, but she has no information.  And -- 

THE COURT:  Did you immediately get her the

information? 

THE PLAINTIFF:  She had the information.  I sent her

the screenshots at -- 

THE COURT:  When did you -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- 5:52.

THE COURT:  -- send her -- you sent it 5:52. Okay.  

THE PLAINTIFF:  I --

THE COURT:  Okay.  

THE PLAINTIFF:  Yeah.

THE COURT:  And there's no -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  And -- 

THE COURT:  -- absolutely no possibility that her

mother could have possibly got them over there in time.  

THE PLAINTIFF:  Within the eight minute time frame?

THE COURT:  What if she was next door?  I mean,

you're -- you know, you're sitting here talking about

something, why couldn't you have picked up the phone and

called last night and said hey, did this happen, which could

have clarified a lot of stuff, wouldn't it?

THE PLAINTIFF:  Because I -- when I -- 

THE COURT:  You didn't take a -- 
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THE PLAINTIFF:  -- read the messages, I think it's a

clear -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah.

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- indication.

THE COURT:  It -- it isn't, because when -- you

know, when you put things in people's head, then someone may

react to it and -- and they may have called and said hey, can

we bring him a couple minutes late?  So even though he may

have supposed to have been there for eight minutes, you know,

it could have happened.  Give her a benefit of a doubt.

THE PLAINTIFF:  I believe my testimony was that I

received a call -- 

THE COURT:  Your testimony was like she absolutely

did not do it.  Well, no she didn't.  Her mom did.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Right.  Because I had received    

the -- 

THE COURT:  That's the testimony is her mom -- 

MR. GOODWIN:  Your Honor -- 

THE COURT:  -- did it.

MR. GOODWIN:  -- her testimony was that she -- he

had received a bill for a missed class.

THE COURT:  No.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Received a call about a -- 

THE COURT:  A -- 
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THE PLAINTIFF:  -- missed one -- 

THE COURT:  -- call -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- (indiscernible).

THE COURT:  -- about -- 

MR. GOODWIN:  Right.  

THE COURT:  -- it, but he never paid for what he

would normally have had to have paid, which means somebody

else had to have paid for it. 

THE PLAINTIFF:  Or the speech therapist waived it

because -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah.  

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- it was a one time's occurrence.

MS. CRAMER:  But there's no evidence of that waiver.

THE COURT:  There -- there is -- there is no ev -- I

mean, you all are sitting here.  It's a he said, she said. 

Who am I supposed to believe?

MS. CRAMER:  Over -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.

MS. CRAMER:  -- one appointment. 

THE COURT:  With all of this stuff -- 

MS. CRAMER:  Two years -- 

THE COURT:  -- here -- 

MS. CRAMER:  -- ago.

THE COURT:  -- why couldn't -- 
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THE PLAINTIFF:  The only appointment -- 

THE COURT:  No, with all of -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- that she had control over. 

THE COURT:  -- this stuff in here -- 

MS. CRAMER:  Please don't. 

THE COURT:  -- why do I not have any of the  

medical -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  What? 

THE COURT:  -- records so that I could have looked?

But medical records would have had every appointment time and

whether or not the child showed up.  So guess what there would

never have been a question about?  And you're an attorney, you

know better.

THE PLAINTIFF:  I will say that there are the dental

records, but not the speech therapy records.

THE COURT:  I've looked through this here.  There's

a couple things that I -- well, not this, this is -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  And there's -- 

THE COURT:  -- something different.

THE PLAINTIFF:  There's -- 

THE COURT:  But -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- Margos' -- 

THE COURT:  -- anyway -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- speech therapy -- 
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THE COURT:  -- we have -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- notes. 

THE COURT:  -- got five minutes.

THE PLAINTIFF:  I -- I'm done with my follow up.  

THE COURT:  Okay.  I don't have anything else.  The

-- the April 17th -- 11:00 a.m.?

THE CLERK:  Yes, Judge.

THE COURT:  Are you all available?

THE PLAINTIFF:  Court's indulgence.

THE COURT:  And I will probably have a written order

before then and this would be taken off calendar, but -- but

I've -- you know, I want to make sure that you all are

available.

THE PLAINTIFF:  April 17th, Your Honor?

THE COURT:  April 17th.

MS. CRAMER:  That's a Sunday.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Yeah.

THE COURT:  That's a Sunday.  What are you doing

giving me a Sunday date?

THE CLERK:  I'm sure they're available.

THE PLAINTIFF:  I -- I don't know that the Court's

staff is available.

MR. GOODWIN:  I don’t know that --  

THE COURT:  Were we looking at March when we were
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looking at this?

THE CLERK:  Into -- oh, let me see if she wants -- 

THE COURT:  I bet you it was March 17th -- 

THE CLERK:  Yes.  

THE COURT:  -- when she was looking.

THE MARSHAL:  St. Patrick's Day.

THE WITNESS:  Better wear green -- 

THE COURT:  No.  

THE WITNESS:  -- or I'm after you.

THE COURT:  We're not going to have it done by March

17th.

THE WITNESS:  My eyes are green.

THE COURT:  Oh, because I'm not going to -- I -- you

know, I won't able to spend a lot of time the 4th -- I'm now

--  I'm now down in May.  How did I get there?

THE CLERK:  I'm going to shut the date.

THE COURT:  April 14th.

THE CLERK:  Oh.

THE COURT:  At 11:30.  Yeah.  

MS. CRAMER:  I am available on April 14th.

THE PLAINTIFF:  I'm likewise available.

THE COURT:  Okay.  All right.  Fantastic.  Then it

will -- it will be by BlueJeans unless I have the order out

prior to that, then it will be vacated.
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MS. CRAMER:  And Your Honor, do -- are we going to

be allowed to present closing or can we brief that separately? 

THE COURT:  You can brief -- you know what, you can

brief the closing.  Let's -- let's brief it that way you've

got the time to actually put the stuff together, think about

it.  And that may be a little bit easier.  I want both of them

-- what's two -- would two weeks be -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  Should be sufficient.

MS. CRAMER:  Yes, that would be -- yeah, that would

be plenty of time. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Then -- then we're going to do

two weeks and we'll do the brief.  In that, if you have not

agreed to what to do with financials, whether you have or have

not brief it, okay, if you've -- if you've agreed to it, put

it in the brief. that way I see it.  If you have not, then

brief your side of it.  I'll have your financial disclosure

forms.  I've got the books here.  And then we will go from

there.

MS. CRAMER:  And Your Honor, on the 14th, what was

the date or the time? 

THE CLERK:  11:30.

THE COURT:  11:30.

MS. CRAMER:  All right.  Thank you.  I'm sorry if I

missed that.
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THE COURT:  That's okay.  I understand.  You may -- 

you -- you may go back over there.  You don't have to continue

sitting there.

THE WITNESS:  I like the princess chair.

THE COURT:  You like the princess chair?

THE WITNESS:  I like the princess chair.  All eyes

on me.

(WITNESS EXCUSED) 

THE PLAINTIFF:  Your Honor, I'd -- I'd offer the

following stipulation that each party have their own debts as

set forth in the Defendant's property offer that -- 

MS. CRAMER:  That was never -- no, I -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  That -- 

MS. CRAMER:  -- didn't make that offer.

THE PLAINTIFF:  You -- 

MS. CRAMER:  And I've -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- absolutely did.

THE COURT:  Well, here's -- 

MS. CRAMER:  No.  No.  No.  

THE COURT:  Here -- here -- here's one of the

situations.  Usually agreements are made as a whole or they're

negotiated.  I'm -- I'm not going to piecemeal, you know,

because she may, she may have been getting something extra in

the property that you're not going to be willing to do if
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that's the key.

MS. CRAMER:  And -- 

THE COURT:  You all are still married other than her

home.  Anything she may have charged unless it deals with her

third child, it's still community, just like yours is.

THE PLAINTIFF:  I -- I understand.  I'm just

confused because I -- I've got the offer here.

MS. CRAMER:  No, he -- there was an offer between

Jack and him like I don't know how long ago, because I wasn't

involved in this case.  They didn't accept it until it became

more fruitful and now they want it.

THE PLAINTIFF:  It's -- 

MS. CRAMER:  And I -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  It's inaccurate and I'm looking at

-- 

MS. CRAMER:  And I'm -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- Ms. Cramer's email here.

MS. CRAMER:  I am -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  It's -- 

THE COURT:  There's not an agreement on it.  So

brief it unless you come to an agreement.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT:  You're welcome.  You know, I mean, until

it's a signed order by me or we prove it up, it's just
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negotiations.

THE COURT:  I understand.

MS. CRAMER:  And it's a stale order that -- or it's

a stale offer that was never accepted for I don't even know

how long.  So it's -- it's stale.

THE COURT:  No, I'm not going to do that in March. 

All right.  The -- I've got a couple minutes still here.  One

of the things that I have done -- did you buy the house from

your dad -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  No.

THE COURT:  -- that you all sold?  Why is it that I

have a grant bargain sale deed in here -- from your -- your --

from what, it appears to --  

THE PLAINTIFF:  Sorry.

THE COURT:  -- be your mom and dad to you.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Let -- let me be -- are -- I thought

you were talking about my current residence.

THE COURT:  No, not -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  You mean -- 

THE COURT:  -- your current residency.

THE PLAINTIFF:  The former marital one?    

Absolutely -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah.  

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- I did.
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THE COURT:  You did.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Yes, I did.

THE COURT:  Okay.

THE PLAINTIFF:  That's the separate property

interest in dispute with the 85,000 -- 

THE COURT:  All right.  

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- that you had my dad -- 

THE COURT:  The problem is -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- testify about.

THE COURT:  -- is it was -- it was given to both of

you as an entirety.  So no, I'm not going to recognize a

separate property on that.  I -- 

MS. CRAMER:  Your Honor -- 

THE COURT:  I just looked it up.  I mean, it was

very obvious that it was granted to both of you -- 

MS. CRAMER:  Your -- 

THE COURT:  -- as community property in its entirety

there.  There are -- you know -- 

MS. CRAMER:  Your Honor -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- it was not any portion of it

withheld.  Yes, ma'am.

MS. CRAMER:  I would -- I would ask the Court to

make some specific findings because there is a page in that,

it's the last page, where it says to my son.  And I know that
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there is case law that says, you know, we can do quitclaims

and we can do things like that and it still makes it community

property and some for credit worthiness type of calculations

and things like that.  I would just ask if Your Honor is going

to make that award that you make the appropriate findings

because I am already -- 

THE COURT:  I know how to do my job.

MS. CRAMER:  -- I'm predicting an appeal.

THE COURT:  I already know there's going to be an

appeal.

MS. CRAMER:  All right.

THE COURT:  It -- you know, if -- you know, I -- I

can tell by the look on his face. 

MS. CRAMER:  I know. 

THE COURT:  The way he’s holding his mouth and his

eyes.

MS. CRAMER:  I know.

THE COURT:  And withholding his grin.  No, now he's

grinning.

MS. CRAMER:  Can -- are -- should we pack up, Your

Honor?

THE COURT:  Yes.

THE CLERK:  Go off the record?

THE COURT:  I have -- I have a trial that starts in
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an hour-and-a-half.  Do you want me to be in a trial with you

all cranky.

MS. CRAMER:  I'm never cranky, Your Honor.  I am   

a -- 

THE COURT:  Oh, I am.

MS. CRAMER:  -- ray of sunshine.  Chip (ph) told me. 

He said I'm a ray of sunshine.

THE MARSHAL:  It's true.

THE DEFENDANT:  She brightens -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  Are -- 

THE DEFENDANT:  -- everybody's day.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Are we off record?

THE COURT:  We are.  We -- let's go off the record.

(PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED AT 11:58:57)

* * * * * *

ATTEST:  I do hereby certify that I have truly and

correctly transcribed the digital proceedings in the above-

entitled case to the best of my ability.

______________________________

Adrian N. Medrano
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA THURSDAY, APRIL 14, 2022

P R O C E E D I N G S

(THE PROCEEDINGS BEGAN AT 11:39:10)

THE CLERK:  We're on, Judge. 

THE COURT:  All right.  Good morning.  We are on the

record case number D-19-582245-D, Solinger versus Solinger. 

Mr. Solinger, good morning.  How are you doing?

THE PLAINTIFF:  I'm well.  How about yourself, Your

Honor?

THE COURT:  I'm doing pretty good.  I'm going to

take Ms. Cramer's appearance.

MS. CRAMER:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Ms. Michancy

Cramer, 11545, for the Defendant who's with me here today.

THE COURT:  Welcome.  Mr. Solinger, I actually had

someone tell me the other day that they had you as an attorney

and I can't remember their name.  They said you did an awesome

job for them.  So just wanted to let you know.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Thank you.

THE COURT:  Yeah.  Okay.  So we are here.  We were

supposed to come in here for a decision, but I've decided to

kind of put the decision off in case something happens today

that may make a difference.  So we're going to come back in 30

days for that decision because I -- because whatever is said
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today, I want to be able to think about it and give it the --

the due thought.  I don't know if I'm going to reopen for more

-- more evidence and stuff.  I don't know if it rises to that,

but I do want to hear what both sides have to say about this. 

Okay.

MS. CRAMER:  All right.

THE PLAINTIFF:  All right.  It's Mom's motion.

MS. CRAMER:  All right.  Your Honor, I'm just making

these representations as an offer of proof.  So I -- forget

the exact night, but there was an incident in March at Chalese

and Josh's home.  And -- 

THE COURT:  Josh's home or her home?

MS. CRAMER:  They lived together at the time.

THE COURT:  Okay.

MS. CRAMER:  So they had had a birthday party, Josh

and his sister were fighting, his sister was making some

remarks that were kind of -- 

THE COURT:  His sister?

MS. CRAMER:  Yes.  

THE COURT:  Okay.

MS. CRAMER:  And they had guests over, so Chalese

was just going to wait until they all left so she could talk

to him about what his sister was saying because it did cause

her some concerns.  It involved drug use.  And they went to

                                                                                                                                                                                  

  D-19-582245-D   SOLINGER   04/14/22   TRANSCRIPT  (SEALED)

VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC  (520) 303-7356

      

    3

004773



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

bed.  The next morning, it was Monday morning -- it was

Monday, right?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

MS. CRAMER:  Monday morning.  She was getting the

kids ready.  Josh got kind of belligerent, started throwing a

bit of a hissy fit, got angry, started yelling, knocked the TV

over.  Chalese took the children outside, put them in the car,

called the cops.  He was arrested.  There is currently a TPO

in place.  It expires, I believe, in two more weeks.  And   

then --

THE COURT:  Are you going to move --

MS. CRAMER:  -- there is a -- 

THE COURT:  -- to extend it?

MS. CRAMER:  Huh?

THE COURT:  Are you going to move to extend it? 

MS. CRAMER:  No, Your Honor.  There is a criminal no

contact order.

THE COURT:  Okay.

MS. CRAMER:  And so since that time Josh has moved

out of the home.  Him and his -- his two older children are

living with his father and his father is facilitating a

visitation with Cheyenne (ph), the baby.

THE COURT:  Okay.

MS. CRAMER:  And there have been no violations. 

                                                                                                                                                                                  

  D-19-582245-D   SOLINGER   04/14/22   TRANSCRIPT  (SEALED)

VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC  (520) 303-7356

      

    4

004774



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Also I have been in contact with Josh myself.  Chalese has not

except regarding the child obviously.  I do have here a drug

test from ATI.  He tested negative on all the drugs that he

was tested for which were amphetamines, cocaine, opiates   

and --

THE COURT:  Pretty much the gambit that we would

normally test for.

MS. CRAMER:  The scary ones, yes.

THE COURT:  Okay.

MS. CRAMER:  I also have here the email.  He

forwarded it directly from ATI to me so that it shows the

email traffic.  I also have an email -- or a letter that he

sent me that it was prepared by his treating physician for his

criminal case regarding his mental health treatment.  And

apparently he was being transferred from one medication to

another and there was a period of decompensation.  The doctor

here indicates that he has follow up appointments or he did in

March.  He is transitioning and readjusting to his medication

and that he is consistent and compliant with all his treatment

and his appointments.

THE COURT:  My big question, Mom, are you intending

on taking him back or is it over?

THE DEFENDANT:  I don't have a definite answer at

this time.  I want things to -- I need things to be different. 
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I'm not going to be in a situation, put myself or my children

in a situation where I am with another abusive partner.  I was

doing that for years.  If he can follow the correct steps and

we can maybe rekindle, I can't promise there's a relationship,

maybe a friendship.  I'm not sure at this moment.

THE COURT:  Okay.

THE DEFENDANT  All -- all I know is I'm taking the

time to make sure me and my children are okay, that I'm doing

the best for my daughter Cheyenne and making sure that none of

this ever happens again.

THE COURT:  She -- she does not need to be a part of

that.

THE DEFENDANT  No.

THE COURT:  No, that's not a good for -- for her or

for Michael and Marie.  I mean, it's -- 

THE DEFENDANT  I's not -- 

THE COURT:  -- not a -- 

THE DEFENDANT  -- for any -- 

THE COURT:  -- good -- 

THE DEFENDANT  -- of them. 

THE COURT:  -- example for you to be around that and

put up with it because you're showing your kids this is proper

behavior if you do.  So -- 

THE DEFENDANT  Yes, Your Honor.  
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THE COURT:  -- you know.  Okay.  Dad.

MS. CRAMER:  Your Honor, may we be seated?

THE COURT:  Yes, please be seated.  You don't have

to ask.

MS. CRAMER:  Well, I'm going to.  Sorry.

THE PLAINTIFF:  I -- I mean, I'm not sure to comment

about another abusive relationship.

THE COURT:  I -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  Obviously -- 

THE COURT:  You -- you not -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- raise -- 

THE COURT:  -- you know -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- several concerns. 

THE COURT:  You know, I let things go over my head. 

You know, I know what she said, but doesn't -- you know, this

is the only one that I -- Josh is the one I'm concerned with

right now, because she's not living with you anymore.

THE PLAINTIFF:  I understood.  I -- I guess based on

that offer of proof, what's complicated is that Chalese had

asked me to pick the kids up that Sunday night.  So obviously

she knew there was an issue.  I have been out of town at the

time and I wasn't -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah.

THE PLAINTIFF:  --  able to come pick them up.  But
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if I would have known the severity of the issue, I obviously

would have driven back through the night to get there.

THE COURT:  Well, I think -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  It -- it -- 

THE COURT:  -- this would have -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  I don't know that -- 

THE COURT:  -- happened even before you would have

had a chance to get back.  So, you know, certain things are

meant to happen.  You know, your children were protected, I

believe.  You know, I want to think about the situation,   

but --

THE PLAINTIFF:  Was -- 

THE COURT:  -- you know -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  Your Honor, CPS -- 

THE COURT:  -- it's -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- is also involved at this point

because last Thursday, I -- I don't know quite what happened,

but Michael had told his -- well, Michael went to school

Friday last week, told his friends that he needed to find a

knife to kill himself and -- and that he was going to do that.

Thankfully, his friends went and told the teacher.  The

teachers went and talked to him.  Apparently he had reported

that something had happened the night before that had kind of

triggered this.  I'm not quite sure what.  And, you know, in
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talking to him, he said that Josh had said he was going to

kill him and that he was very upset about that and that that's

why he -- 

THE COURT:  This Thursday night? 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- wanted to do this.  And so -- 

THE COURT:  Was it -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  Pardon? 

THE COURT:  -- this last Thursday night?

THE PLAINTIFF:  Correct.  But he -- he 

THE COURT:  So how would -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- had told his teachers --

THE COURT:  -- Josh have had contact? I mean -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  Well -- 

THE COURT:  -- so -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- his -- 

THE COURT:  -- because, I mean -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- if the -- 

THE COURT:  -- there's a -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- guidance -- 

THE COURT:  -- criminal -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- counselor -- 

THE COURT:  -- no contact. 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- had asked him -- 

THE COURT:  Huh?
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THE PLAINTIFF:  If Josh -- the guidance counselors

had asked him if Josh had been around and he said not really. 

You know, I didn't -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.  

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- want to pry, but CPS called me

yesterday.  They told me that they've been trying to get in

touch with Chalese, that they've been unsuccessful in getting

in touch with her -- 

MS. CRAMER:  That's not true.

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- and that now -- 

THE COURT:  I -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- CPS is scheduled to come by my

house on Monday to talk to Michael -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- next week, for what it's worth.

THE COURT:  All right.  Just reach out to CPS and

get -- would -- would you get the case worker's name and let

Ms. Cramer know -- 

MS. CRAMER:  And Your Honor, my client's already in

contact with CPS, so that's a misrepresentation.

THE COURT:  Okay.  Well, they may not always tell

him -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  I'm not -- 

THE COURT:  -- that they've been -- 
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THE PLAINTIFF:  -- misrepresenting -- 

THE COURT:  -- in contact. 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- anything, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Yeah.  Okay.  All right.

THE PLAINTIFF:  I mean -- 

THE COURT:  Well, let's -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- I -- I don't know -- 

THE COURT:  -- you know -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- why -- here -- 

THE COURT:  Well -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- here's -- 

THE COURT:  That's -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- the text messages, here's -- 

THE COURT:  Sir -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- the caseworker.

THE COURT:  -- that's okay.  That's okay.  Right

now, you know, not really that tells me Josh isn't there.  So,

you know, I'd like to find out when it was that Josh made this

comment.

MS. CRAMER:  It was a -- 

THE COURT:  And it may have been in that transition. 

It may have been six months ago.  It may have been just a

couple -- you know, a week before this happened.  I don't

know.  But as long as Josh is not around the children right
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now and temporarily that's going to be my order that until we

know for a fact that he's not going to have anymore outbursts

like that, I don't want him around the kids.  Okay.  That's

temporarily.  Let's see what happens with the criminal case

and then -- then we can go from there.  Okay.  All right. 

We're going to come -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  And -- 

THE COURT:  -- back on May 26th at 11:00 a.m. for my

decision -- or 11:30?

THE CLERK:  11:30.

MS. CRAMER:  Your Honor, I would like to address

some of the things he said.  So you -- 

THE COURT:  You really think it's necessary? 

MS. CRAMER:  I just want to make a really brief

record.

THE COURT:  Okay.  Make a brief record -- 

MS. CRAMER:  Thank you.  

THE COURT:  -- because I'm hungry.

MS. CRAMER:  I hear you, Your Honor.  My client is

in contact with CPS also.  CPS's initial investigation is

always without the parents at the school.

THE COURT:  I know. 

MS. CRAMER:  He hasn't had con -- it's a 45 day TPO. 

So he hasn't had contact with the children for over a month
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now.

THE COURT:  I'm wondering if he's having dreams or

something like that.  So, you know, I'm going to -- I'm going

to let this -- you know, the CPS thing needs to play out so

that we know hopefully there's not some mental problem in

there.  Maybe your son's having nightmares.  I don't know. 

You know, let -- let -- you know we're going to let CPS do

their job and see what comes out of it.  I'm not changing

anything right now.

THE PLAINTIFF:  No, I -- I understand.  I'm just not

sure how we can come back for a decision on May 26th because

Your -- Your Honor had threatened to make a finding of

domestic violence based upon a motion that I filed and now

there's actual real domestic violence in this case, of which

the children were a victim -- 

THE COURT:  But it's not in this -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- and we're -- 

THE COURT:  -- case -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- being loosey-goosey.

THE COURT:  The children were in the car when this

stuff took place and Mom -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  They were in the house.

THE COURT:  -- Mom took proper actions.

MS. CRAMER:  And Your Honor --
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THE COURT:  I think -- I really think Mom took the

proper actions.  She got him out of the the way.  She tried

calling you on Sunday and you weren't available.

MS. CRAMER:  But Your Honor, this didn't happen on

Sunday.   There was -- he was squabbling and arguing with his

sister at the birthday party, but it was like at the

beginning, it ended.  And which is why I wanted to offer my

client her -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah, it was -- 

MS. CRAMER:  -- testimony. 

THE COURT:  -- the Monday -- it was the Monday

after, you know, it's -- 

MS. CRAMER:  Yes, it didn't -- 

THE COURT:  -- you know -- 

MS. CRAMER:  -- happen on Sunday night.

THE COURT:  Yeah.  

MS. CRAMER:  And -- 

THE COURT:  Well, the arguing started.  She tried to

call Dad because she sensed him -- she knows Josh.  She knew

his mood, so, you know, so she tried to -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  Let -- 

THE COURT:  -- get in touch with him.  

THE PLAINTIFF:  Let me be very clear.  She didn't

say anything about Josh, Your Honor.  She said the children
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were sick and throwing up and wanted to meet me at the VA. 

Nothing about Josh.  It was that they were sick and throwing

up.  I was out of town.  If she had said that there's an issue

with Josh, that there's a safety issue, that would have been

much different.

THE COURT:  Okay.  

THE PLAINTIFF:  Not to mention -- 

THE COURT:  All right.  

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- I would have been back in time.

THE COURT:  Yeah.

MS. CRAMER:  There was no safety issue on Sunday. 

The children had thrown up earlier and that's why she had

gotten a hold of him.  It was just going to be easier to do it

Sunday if he was in town because -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.

MS. CRAMER:  -- Monday morning, everybody's going to

work.  The -- there's a bunch of kids in the house, kid --

getting kids out the door Monday morning when some of them

have been sick.  It's like herding -- 

THE COURT:  Sometimes -- 

MS. CRAMER:  -- cats.

THE COURT:  -- it's hard.  Yeah.  Well, you know,

right now I've got -- I've got to think about this because

Josh has been a problem.  So I want to think about.  And I
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want go back and review the -- the prior testimonies regarding

the problems that Josh had with you and, you know, driving his

truck towards you.  I want -- I want to look at that.  So  

I'm -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  Can -- 

THE COURT:  -- so I'm going to come -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- can we do a status check and -- 

THE COURT:  We're going to come back on the 26th. 

I, you know, I -- and because I may need to be making some

major changes to the order that I've done.

MS. CRAMER:  And Your Honor, I -- I do want to let

the Court know that the CPS investigator has indicated to

Chalese that there is some concern that Michael's story, if

you will, is too consistent.  We'll see what happens.

THE COURT:  We'll see -- we will see that they are

trained to do their job.

MS. CRAMER:  Yes.

THE PLAINTIFF:  They -- they absolutely are.  I'm

just, I -- I don't understand that the vague illusion towards

anything and it's just -- 

MS. CRAMER:  They believe -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- I -- 

MS. CRAMER:  -- that you've -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  Why am I getting -- 
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MS. CRAMER:  -- coached them.

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- a call from a -- 

MS. CRAMER:  Is that specific -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- CPS --  

MS. CRAMER:  -- enough?

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- investigator?  Why -- 

THE COURT:  That vague illusion was kind of -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  She was -- 

THE COURT:  -- clear to me is that -- that --

they're thinking you may have coached him, but I'm -- you know

-- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  Michael's with her -- 

THE COURT:  -- I don't -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- when he did this.

THE COURT:  I -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  Michael was with Chalese.

THE COURT:  I know. 

MS. CRAMER:  That was a month -- 

THE COURT:  I know.

MS. CRAMER:  -- ago.

THE COURT:  I'm not -- 

MS. CRAMER:  We're talking about a six-year-old. 

THE COURT:  You know, I'm not -- you know, right now

we have got vague reasons for this child to be saying what he
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said.  So I will see you all on the 26th of May to -- to get

the decision.  Now, if -- if -- once -- once it's written, if

it's written, and I -- I have it totally finalized next week,

it'll be vacated and you all get -- will get the order.  As

soon as we get this -- get -- get it written and finalized, I

-- I will send it off, but I do want to make sure that I give

this the consideration that it deserves.  Okay.  All right. 

Hopefully I don't have to see you on the 26th of May, because

hopefully I have it done sooner.  Thank you.

MS. CRAMER:  What time on the 26th, Your Honor?

THE COURT:  11:30.

MS. CRAMER:  11:30.  And what is that?  Are we -- is

that for the decision?

THE COURT:  It's going to be for the decision.

MS. CRAMER:  And you want us to submit our closing

briefs now?

THE COURT:  Yeah.  I was kind of hoping you'd had

the closing briefs before now.

THE PLAINTIFF:  I -- I don't know how I can do a

closing brief with this still in the air.  CPS is

investigating.  It just -- it seems like we're putting this

order before the children, frankly.

THE COURT:  Well -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  Like the -- this directly -- 
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THE COURT:  -- be -- because -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- impacts them. 

THE COURT:  -- this is -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  The Court -- 

THE COURT:  -- something -- okay.  This is something

new.  Okay.  We will have a decision regarding what has been

properly before me in an evidentiary hearing.  And if

something comes up that warrants a change, then we will

proceed.  But right now, you know, I'm -- I've -- I've

listened here, but I'm not -- I'm not concerned about CPS and

Josh threatening to stab him because -- because, you know,

even he was asked well, has Josh been around you.  And he says

not really.  So that tells me something's in the head.  If

Josh would have been around, that may have been something

different.  But your own son stated he wasn't really around,

so -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  That's not a no; number one.  Number

two, they're talking about reconciliation and the standard

after you have a final -- 

THE COURT:  She has not -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- custody order --

THE COURT:  -- said anything at all -- 

THE PLAINTIFF:  -- to modify (indiscernible).

THE COURT:  -- about reconciliation and until
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there's a reconciliation and -- and other -- and -- and

anything -- anything else, you know, right now I'm going to

take her at her word.  She wants to make sure that there's not

going to be any abuse in that relationship.  I'm going -- I'm

going to take her at her word.  All right.  May 26th at the

latest will be the decision.

MS. CRAMER:  Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT:  Thank you.  No order is necessary from

today since there is no changes.

MS. CRAMER:  Okay.  

THE COURT:  Minutes will suffice because there is

nothing really ordered here. 

THE PLAINTIFF:  Your Honor, there is the change with

Josh and the no contact. 

THE COURT:  No, there is.  You -- would you like to

do an order for me, Mr. Solinger, about that? 

THE PLAINTIFF:  I wouldn't, but I will.

THE COURT:  Because I don't want to do it.  So I'll

let you do the quick order.

THE PLAINTIFF:  I'll do it.

THE COURT:  Okay.  Thank you.  And -- 

MS. CRAMER:  May I sign -- 

THE COURT:  And let Ms. -- 

MS. CRAMER:  May I review -- 
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THE COURT:  -- Cramer -- 

MS. CRAMER:  -- and sign off? 

THE COURT:  -- for review and approve.

THE PLAINTIFF:  Yep.  Thank you.

THE COURT:  Thank you.  You do good orders, sir.

(PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED AT 11:54:17)

* * * * * *

ATTEST:  I do hereby certify that I have truly and

correctly transcribed the digital proceedings in the above-

entitled case to the best of my ability.

______________________________

Adrian N. Medrano
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